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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports)
and (2) has been subject to the filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes  o                                                   No  x  The registrant has not filed its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or non-accelerated filer.  See definition of
�accelerated filer and larger accelerated filer� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.  (Check one:)

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes o No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer�s classes of common stock as of July 31, 2006.

Common Stock, $.10 par
value

58,866,857

(Class) (Number of shares)
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A (�Form 10-Q/A�) is being filed in order to correct the previously issued
historical consolidated financial statements of Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. (�Omega� or the �Company�) as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, initially
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�) on August 4, 2006, for errors in previously reported amounts related to income
tax matters and asset values, as well as to reflect as well as the recording of straight-line rental income.

For the convenience of the reader, this Form 10-Q/A includes all of the information contained in the original report on Form 10-Q, and no
attempt has been made in this Form 10-Q/A to modify or update the disclosures presented in the original report on Form 10-Q, except as
required to reflect the effects of the restatement. The Form 10-Q/A does not reflect events occurring after the filing of the Form 10-Q or modify
or update those disclosures, including the exhibits to the Form 10-Q affected by subsequent events. Information not affected by the restatement
is unchanged and reflects the disclosures made at the time of the original filing of the Form 10-Q on August 4, 2006.  Accordingly, this Form
10-Q/A should be read in conjunction with our filings made with the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequent to the filing of the
original Form 10-Q, including any amendments to those filings. The following items have been amended as a result of the restatement:

•  Part I � Item 1 � Financial Statements;

•  Part I � Item 2 � Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

•  Part I � Item 3 � Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks;

•  Part I � Item 4 � Controls and Procedures; and

•  Part II � Item 1A � Risk Factors.

We have not amended and do not intend to amend our previously filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for periods affected by the restatement
other than the Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter March 31, 2006. For this reason, the consolidated financial statements, auditors� reports and
related financial information for the affected periods contained in any other prior reports should no longer be relied upon.  In addition, this Form
10-Q/A includes current certifications from our CEO and CFO as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2.

Our Board of Directors, including our Audit Committee, concluded on October 24, 2006, to restate our audited financial results as of December
31, 2005 and 2004 and for the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and for other periods affected, including our unaudited
financial statements for each quarterly period in 2004, 2005 and 2006 as necessary (the �Restatement�).  The Restatement reflects the following
adjustments:

1.  We have recorded asset values for securities received from Advocat Inc. (�Advocat�) (and the increases therein)
since the completion of the restructuring of Advocat obligations pursuant to leases and mortgages for the facilities
then operated by Advocat in 2000.  These adjustments will increase net income by $5.9 million and $8.7 million for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2005, respectively.  These adjustments will also increase total assets by $13.6 million and $5.4
million as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.  Changes in the fair value of the securities not
currently recognized in net income will be reflected in other comprehensive income.

2.  As a result of our holdings of Advocat securities, we have recorded reserves related to a potential tax liability
arising from our ownership of such securities.  This tax liability
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along with related interest expense had not been previously accrued for and this adjustment will decrease net income by $0.6 million and $1.1
million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.2 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2005, respectively.  The amount accrued represents the estimated liability, which remains subject to final resolution and therefore is
subject to change.

3.  Subsequent to October 25, 2006, we made a correction to our accounting for certain leases because these
leases contain provisions (such as increases in rent based on the lesser of a fixed amount or two times the Consumer
Price Index) that require us to record rental income on a straight-line basis subject to an appropriate evaluation of
collectibility.  We had not previously recorded rental income on these leases on a straight-line basis.  As a result of
this adjustment, our net income will increase by $0.9 million and $1.9 million for the three and six months ended June
30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005,
respectively.  In addition, net accounts receivable and retained earnings will increase by $11.1 million and $9.1
million as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, to reflect the effects of this adjustment from
inception of the affected leases.

Additional information about the decision to restate these financial statements can be found in our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on October 25, 2006.

3

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

5



PART I � FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1 - Financial Statements

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2006 2005
(Restated) (Restated)
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Real estate properties
Land and buildings at cost $ 1,060,226 $ 996,127
Less accumulated depreciation (171,948 ) (157,255 )
Real estate properties � net 888,278 838,872
Mortgage notes receivable � net 32,381 104,522

920,659 943,394
Other investments � net 42,632 28,918

963,291 972,312
Assets held for sale � net 248 1,243
Total investments 963,539 973,555

Cash and cash equivalents 14,053 3,948
Accounts receivable � net 17,402 15,018
Other assets 13,998 37,769
Total assets $ 1,008,992 $ 1,030,290

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Revolving line of credit $ � $ 58,000
Unsecured borrowings � net 484,739 505,429
Other long-term borrowings 41,800 2,800
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 22,399 19,563
Income tax liabilities 4,438 3,299
Operating liabilities for owned properties 125 256
Total liabilities 553,501 589,347

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock 118,488 118,488
Common stock and additional paid-in-capital 680,443 663,607
Cumulative net earnings 264,734 237,069
Cumulative dividends paid (568,150 ) (536,041 )
Cumulative dividends � redemption (43,067 ) (43,067 )
Unamortized restricted stock awards � (1,167 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,043 2,054
Total stockholders� equity 455,491 440,943
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,008,992 $ 1,030,290

Note � The balance sheet at December 31, 2005 has been restated and derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements at that date but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted
accounting principles for complete financial statements.
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

Revenues
Rental income $ 29,973 $ 23,131 $ 59,903 $ 45,582
Mortgage interest income 1,154 1,240 2,338 3,196
Other investment income � net 947 793 1,884 1,497
Miscellaneous 332 1,146 441 4,312
Total operating revenues 32,406 26,310 64,566 54,587

Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 7,542 6,044 15,060 11,742
General and administrative 2,313 2,123 4,662 4,235
Provision for uncollectible mortgages, notes and accounts receivable � 83 � 83
Leasehold expiration expense � 750 � 750
Total operating expenses 9,855 9,000 19,722 16,810

Income before other income and expense 22,551 17,310 44,844 37,777
Other income (expense):
Interest and other investment income 69 24 182 65
Interest (9,447 ) (6,948 ) (19,056 ) (13,722 )
Interest � amortization of deferred financing costs (431 ) (525 ) (1,074 ) (1,031 )
Interest � refinancing costs � � (3,485 ) �
Provision for impairment on equity securities � (3,360 ) � (3,360 )
Change in fair value of derivatives 5,474 (229 ) 7,908 (411 )
Total other expense (4,335 ) (11,038 ) (15,525 ) (18,459 )

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 18,216 6,272 29,319 19,318
Provision for income taxes (590 ) (606 ) (1,139 ) (1,188 )
Income from continuing operations 17,626 5,666 28,180 18,130
(Loss) from discontinued operations (136 ) (3,219 ) (515 ) (6,033 )
Net income 17,490 2,447 27,665 12,097
Preferred stock dividends (2,481 ) (2,864 ) (4,962 ) (6,423 )
Preferred stock conversion and redemption charges � (2,013 ) � (2,013 )
Net income (loss) available to common $ 15,009 $ (2,430 ) $ 22,703 $ 3,661

Income (loss) per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.26 $ 0.02 $ 0.40 $ 0.19
Net income (loss) $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.26 $ 0.02 $ 0.40 $ 0.19
Net income (loss) $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07

Dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.24 $ 0.21 $ 0.47 $ 0.41

Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 58,158 51,031 57,787 50,980
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 58,283 51,365 57,881 51,339

Components of other comprehensive income:
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Net income $ 17,490 $ 2,447 $ 27,665 $ 12,097
Unrealized gain on common stock investment 881 � 1,580 �
Unrealized loss on preferred stock investment (286 ) (264 ) (590 ) (627 )
Total comprehensive income $ 18,085 $ 2,183 $ 28,655 $ 11,470

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited (in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2006 2005
(Restated) (Restated)

Operating activities
Net income $ 27,665 $ 12,097
Adjustment to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization (including amounts in discontinued operations) 15,069 12,793
Provision for impairment on real estate properties (including amounts in discontinued operations) 121 3,700
Provision for uncollectible mortgages, notes and accounts receivable � 83
Provision for impairment on equity securities � 3,360
Refinancing costs 3,485 �
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,074 1,031
Loss on assets sold � net 381 4,202
Restricted stock amortization expense 585 571
Change in fair value of derivatives (7,908 ) 411
Income from accretion of marketable securities to redemption value (827 ) (815 )
Other (23 ) (1,516 )
Net change in accounts receivable (2,384 ) 220
Net change in other assets 1,598 135
Net change in tax liabilities 1,139 1,188
Net change in operating assets and liabilities 2,708 (3,077 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,683 34,383

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of real estate � (120,696 )
Proceeds from sale of real estate investments 657 24,995
Cash in transit from sale � (12,689 )
Capital improvements and funding of other investments (3,649 ) (1,338 )
Proceeds from other investments 17,242 1,262
Investments in other investments (20,339 ) (5,897 )
Collection of mortgage principal 10,392 60,492
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 4,303 (53,871 )

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from credit facility borrowings 48,200 168,000
Payments on credit facility borrowings (106,200 ) (81,500 )
Receipts from other long-term borrowings 39,000 �
Prepayment of re-financing penalty (755 ) �
Receipts from dividend reinvestment plan 17,320 757
Receipts/(payments) from exercised options � net 225 (810 )
Dividends paid (32,109 ) (28,134 )
Redemption of preferred stock � (50,013 )
Payment on common stock offering (178 ) (28 )
Deferred financing costs paid (2,384 ) (333 )
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (36,881 ) 7,939

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,105 (11,549 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,948 12,083
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 14,053 $ 534
Interest paid during the period $ 12,644 $ 13,867
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.

6

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

11



OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited

June 30, 2006

NOTE 1 � BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business Overview

We have one reportable segment consisting of investments in real estate.  Our business is to provide financing and capital to the long-term
healthcare industry with a particular focus on skilled nursing facilities located in the United States.  Our core portfolio consists of long-term
lease and mortgage agreements.  All of our leases are �triple-net� leases, which require the tenants to pay all property-related expenses.  Our
mortgage revenue derives from fixed-rate mortgage loans, which are secured by first mortgage liens on the underlying real estate and personal
property of the mortgagor.  Substantially all depreciation expenses reflected in the consolidated statements of operations relate to the ownership
of our investment in real estate.

Restated Financial Data

We have restated certain historical results in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to correct errors in previously reported
amounts related to income tax matters and certain debt and equity investments in Advocat Inc. (�Advocat�), as well as to record certain
straight-line rental income.  See Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements for Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. (�Omega� or the �Company�) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (�GAAP�) for interim financial information and with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.  Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
GAAP for complete financial statements.  In our opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a
fair presentation have been included.  Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2005 financial statements for consistency with the
presentation adopted for 2006.  Such reclassifications have no effect on previously reported earnings or equity.

Operating results for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for
the year ending December 31, 2006.  For further information, refer to the financial statements and footnotes included in our annual report on
Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Omega, all direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries and one variable interest
entity (�VIE�) for which we are the primary beneficiary.  All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation of the
financial statements.

FAS 123R Adoption

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) issued FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (�FAS No.
123R�), which is a revision of FAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.  FAS No. 123R supersedes Accounting Principles Board
(�APB�) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and amends FAS No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows.  We adopted FAS No.
123R on January 1, 2006.
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FIN 46R

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, (�FIN 46R�), addresses the
consolidation by business enterprises of VIEs.  As a result of the adoption of FIN 46R, we consolidate all VIEs for
which we are the primary beneficiary.  Generally, a VIE is an entity with one or more of the following characteristics:
(a) the total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support; (b) as a group the holders of the equity investment at risk lack (i) the ability to make
decisions about an entity�s activities through voting or similar rights, (ii) the obligation to absorb the expected losses of
the entity, or (iii) the right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity; or (c) the equity investors have voting
rights that are not proportional to their economic interests, and substantially all of the entity�s activities either involve,
or are conducted on behalf of, an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights.  FIN 46R requires a VIE to be
consolidated in the financial statements of the entity that is determined to be the primary beneficiary of the VIE.  The
primary beneficiary generally is the entity that will receive a majority of the VIE�s expected losses, receive a majority
of the VIE�s expected residual returns, or both.

In accordance with FIN 46R, we determined that we were the primary beneficiary of one VIE.  This VIE is derived from a financing relationship
entered into between Omega and one company that is engaged in the ownership and rental of six skilled nursing facilities (�SNFs�) and one
assisted living facility (�ALF�).  The consolidation of the VIE as of June 30, 2006 resulted in an increase in our consolidated total assets (primarily
real estate) and liabilities (primarily indebtedness) of approximately $38.2 million.  The creditors of the VIE do not have recourse to our assets.

FIN 48 Evaluation

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, (�FIN 48�).  FIN 48 is an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, and it seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of
measurement and recognition in accounting for income taxes.  In addition, FIN 48 requires expanded disclosure with respect to the uncertainty
in income taxes and is effective as of the beginning of our 2007 fiscal year.  We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that FIN 48 will have
on our financial statements.

NOTE 2 � RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Restatement Items

Our Board of Directors, including our Audit Committee, concluded on October 24, 2006, to restate certain historical results to correct errors in
previously reported amounts related to tax matters and asset values, as well as to record certain straight-line rental income (the �Restatement�). 
The Restatement reflects the following adjustments:

1.  We have recorded asset values for securities received from Advocat (and the increases therein) since the
completion of the restructuring of Advocat obligations pursuant to leases and mortgages for the facilities then
operated by Advocat in 2000.  These adjustments will increase net income by $5.9 million and $8.7 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2005, respectively.  These adjustments will also increase total assets by $13.6 million and $5.4 million
as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.  Changes in the fair value of the securities not currently
recognized in net income will be reflected in other comprehensive income.
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2.  As a result of our holdings of Advocat securities, we have recorded reserves related to a potential tax liability
arising from our ownership of such securities.  This tax liability along with related interest expense had not been
previously accrued for and this adjustment will decrease net income by $0.6 million and $1.1 million for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.2 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2005, respectively.  The amount accrued represents the estimated liability, which remains subject to final
resolution and therefore is subject to change.

3.  Subsequent to October 25, 2006, we made a correction to our accounting for certain leases because these
leases contain provisions (such as increases in rent based on the lesser of a fixed amount or two times the Consumer
Price Index) that require us to record rental income on a straight-line basis subject to an appropriate evaluation of
collectibility.  We had not previously recorded rental income on these leases on a straight-line basis.  As a result of
this adjustment, our net income will increase by $0.9 million and $1.9 million for the three and six months ended June
30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005,
respectively. In addition, net accounts receivable and retained earnings will increase by $11.1 million and $9.1 million
as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, to reflect the effects of this adjustment from inception of the
affected leases.

Additional information about the decision to restate these financial statements can be found in our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the
SEC on October 25, 2006.

Events Causing the Restatement - Advocat Restructuring

In November 2000, Advocat, an operator of various skilled nursing facilities owned by or mortgaged to us, was in default on its obligations to
us.  As a result, we entered into an agreement with Advocat with respect to the restructuring of Advocat�s obligations pursuant to leases and
mortgages for the facilities then operated by Advocat (the �Initial Advocat Restructuring�).  As part of the Initial Advocat Restructuring in 2000,
Advocat issued to us (i) 393,658 shares of Advocat�s Series B non-voting, redeemable (on or after September 30, 2007), convertible preferred
stock, which was convertible into up to 706,576 shares of Advocat�s common stock (representing 9.9% of the outstanding shares of Advocat�s
common stock on a fully diluted, as-converted basis and accruing dividends at 7% per annum), and (ii) a secured convertible subordinated note
in the amount of $1.7 million bearing interest at 7% per annum with a September 30, 2007 maturity.

Subsequent to the Initial Advocat Restructuring, Advocat�s operations and financial condition have improved and there has been a significant
increase in the market value of Advocat�s common stock from approximately $0.31 per share at the time of the Initial Advocat Restructuring to
the closing price on October 20, 2006 of $18.84.  As a result of the significant increase in the value of the common stock underlying the Series B
preferred stock of Advocat held by us, on October 20, 2006 we again restructured our relationship with Advocat (the �Second Advocat
Restructuring�) by entering into a Restructuring Stock Issuance and Subscription Agreement with Advocat (the �2006 Advocat Agreement�).
Pursuant to the 2006 Advocat Agreement, we exchanged the Advocat Series B preferred stock and subordinated note issued in the Initial
Advocat Restructuring for 5,000 shares of Advocat�s Series C non-convertible, redeemable (at our option after September 30, 2010) preferred
stock with a face value of approximately $4.9 million and a dividend rate of 7% payable quarterly, and a secured non-convertible subordinated
note in the amount of $2.5 million maturing September 30, 2007 and bearing interest at 7% per annum.  As part of the Second Advocat
Restructuring, we also amended our Consolidated Amended and Restated Master Lease by and between one of our subsidiaries, as lessor, and a
subsidiary of Advocat, as lessee, to commence a new 12-year lease term through September 30, 2018 (with a renewal option for an additional 12
year term) and Advocat has agreed to increase the master lease annual rent by approximately $687,000 to approximately $14 million
commencing on January 1, 2007.
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Management believes that certain of the terms of the Advocat Series B preferred stock previously held by us could be interpreted as affecting
our compliance with federal income tax rules applicable to real estate investment trusts (�REITs�) regarding related party tenant income as
described below.

In 2000 at the time of the Initial Advocat Restructuring, we determined that no value should be ascribed to the Advocat preferred stock and
subordinated note and, as a result, no value was recorded on our financial statements at that time or in any subsequent period.  Management now
believes that the accounting treatment in previous periods was incorrect and, in addition to the related party tenant issues described below, the
Restatement reflects the appropriate carrying value (in accordance with FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities (�FAS No. 115�)) of the Advocat preferred stock of $4.6 million and $4.3 million and an embedded derivative (in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (�FAS No. 133) of $9.0 million and
$1.1 million on our restated balance sheets as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.  In addition, in accordance with FASB
Statement No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan (�FAS No. 114�), the Advocat subordinated note of $1.7 million was fully
reserved at June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

The market value for Advocat�s common stock has increased significantly since the completion of the Initial Advocat Restructuring.  In
connection with exploring the potential disposition of the Advocat Series B preferred stock as part of the Second Advocat Restructuring, we
were advised by our tax counsel that due to the structure of the Initial Advocat Restructuring, Advocat may be deemed to be a �related party
tenant� under applicable federal income tax rules and, in such event, rental income from Advocat would not be qualifying income under the gross
income tests that are applicable to REITs.

In order to maintain qualification as a REIT, we annually must satisfy certain tests regarding the source of our gross income.  The applicable
federal income tax rules provide a �savings clause� for REITs that fail to satisfy the REIT gross income tests, if such failure is due to reasonable
cause.  A REIT that qualifies for the savings clause will retain its REIT status but will pay a tax under section 857(b)(5) and related interest.

We currently plan to submit to the IRS a request for a closing agreement to resolve the �related party tenant� issue.  While we believe there are
valid arguments that Advocat should not be deemed a �related party tenant,� the matter is not free from doubt, and we believe it is in our best
interest to request a closing agreement in order to resolve the matter, minimize potential interest charges and obtain assurances regarding its
continuing REIT status.  By submitting a request for a closing agreement, we intend to establish that any failure to satisfy the gross income tests
was due to reasonable cause.  In the event that it is determined that the �savings clause� described above does not apply, we could be treated as
having failed to qualify as a REIT for one or more taxable years.  If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT for any taxable year, our income
will be taxed at regular corporate rates, and we could be disqualified as a REIT for the following four taxable years.

As noted above, we have completed the Second Advocat Restructuring and have been advised by tax counsel that we will not receive any
non-qualifying related party tenant income from Advocat in future fiscal years.  Accordingly, we do not expect to incur tax expense associated
with related party tenant income in future periods commencing January 1, 2007.  We will continue to accrue an income tax liability related to
this matter during 2006.

Recording of Rental Income

During the course of preparing the Restatement due to the issues related to Advocat described above, we determined that we should correct our
accounting for certain leases because these leases contain provisions (such as increases in rent based on the lesser of a fixed amount or two times
the Consumer Price Index) that require us to record rental income on a straight-line basis subject to an appropriate evaluation of collectibility. 
Historically, we have recorded rental income for leases with these
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provisions based on contractual scheduled rent payments, rather than on a straight-line basis.  In accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (�SFAS�) No. 13, Accounting for Leases and Financial Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin No. 88-1 Issues
Related to Accounting for Leases, we have determined that the recording of rental revenue associated with these leases should be on a
straight-line basis.  As a result of this adjustment, our net income will increase by $0.9 million and $1.9 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, respectively.  In addition,
net accounts receivable and retained earnings will increase by $11.1 million and $9.1 million as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively, to reflect the effects of this adjustment from inception of the affected leases.
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The following table sets forth the effects of the adjustments related to the Restatement on our consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2006
and December 31, 2005:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

As of June 30, 2006,
As Reported Adjustments Restated

ASSETS
Real estate properties
Land and buildings at cost $ 1,060,226 $ � $ 1,060,226
Less accumulated depreciation (171,948 ) � (171,948 )
Real estate properties � net 888,278 � 888,278
Mortgage notes receivable � net 32,381 � 32,381

920,659 � 920,659
Other investments � net 29,060 13,572 42,632

949,719 13,572 963,291
Assets held for sale � net 248 � 248
Total investments 949,967 13,572 963,539

Cash and cash equivalents 14,053 � 14,053
Accounts receivable � net 6,342 11,060 17,402
Other assets 13,998 � 13,998
Total assets $ 984,360 $ 24,632 $ 1,008,992

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Revolving line of credit $ � $ � $ �
Unsecured borrowings � net 484,739 � 484,739
Other long-term borrowings 41,800 � 41,800
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 22,399 � 22,399
Income tax liabilities � 4,438 4,438
Operating liabilities for owned properties 125 � 125
Total liabilities 549,063 4,438 553,501

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock 118,488 � 118,488
Common stock and additional paid-in-capital 680,443 � 680,443
Cumulative net earnings 245,843 18,891 264,734
Cumulative dividends paid (568,150 ) � (568,150 )
Cumulative dividends � redemption (43,067 ) � (43,067 )
Unamortized restricted stock awards � � �
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,740 1,303 3,043
Total stockholders� equity 435,297 20,194 455,491
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 984,360 $ 24,632 $ 1,008,992
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Audited)

(in thousands)

As of December 31, 2005,
As Reported Adjustments Restated

ASSETS
Real estate properties
Land and buildings at cost $ 996,127 $ � $ 996,127
Less accumulated depreciation (157,255 ) � (157,255 )
Real estate properties � net 838,872 � 838,872
Mortgage notes receivable � net 104,522 � 104,522

943,394 � 943,394
Other investments � net 23,490 5,428 28,918

966,884 5,428 972,312
Assets held for sale � net 1,243 � 1,243
Total investments 968,127 5,428 973,555

Cash and cash equivalents 3,948 � 3,948
Accounts receivable � net 5,885 9,133 15,018
Other assets 37,769 � 37,769
Total assets $ 1,015,729 $ 14,561 $ 1,030,290

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Revolving line of credit $ 58,000 $ � $ 58,000
Unsecured borrowings � net 505,429 � 505,429
Other long�term borrowings 2,800 � 2,800
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 19,563 � 19,563
Income tax liabilities � 3,299 3,299
Operating liabilities for owned properties 256 � 256
Total liabilities 586,048 3,299 589,347

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock 118,488 � 118,488
Common stock and additional paid-in-capital 663,607 � 663,607
Cumulative net earnings 227,701 9,368 237,069
Cumulative dividends paid (536,041 ) � (536,041 )
Cumulative dividends � redemption (43,067 ) � (43,067 )
Unamortized restricted stock awards (1,167 ) � (1,167 )
Accumulated other comprehensive income 160 1,894 2,054
Total stockholders� equity 429,681 11,262 440,943
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 1,015,729 $ 14,561 $ 1,030,290
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The effects of the adjustments related to the Restatement for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 are summarized below:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended June 30, 2006
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Revenues
Rental income $ 29,042 $ 931 $ 29,973
Mortgage interest income 1,154 � 1,154
Other investment income - net 533 414 947
Miscellaneous 332 � 332
Total operating revenues 31,061 1,345 32,406

Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 7,542 � 7,542
General and administrative 2,313 � 2,313
Total operating expenses 9,855 � 9,855

Income before other income and expense 21,206 1,345 22,551
Other income (expense):
Interest and other investment income 69 � 69
Interest (9,447 ) � (9,447 )
Interest � amortization of deferred financing costs (431 ) � (431 )
Change in fair value of derivatives � 5,474 5,474
Total other expense (9,809 ) 5,474 (4,335 )

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 11,397 6,819 18,216
Provision for income taxes � (590 ) (590 )
Income from continuing operations 11,397 6,229 17,626
Loss from discontinued operations (136 ) � (136 )
Net income 11,261 6,229 17,490
Preferred stock dividends (2,481 ) � (2,481 )
Net income available to common $ 8,780 $ 6,229 $ 15,009

Income per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.15 $ 0.11 $ 0.26
Net income $ 0.15 $ 0.11 $ 0.26
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.15 $ 0.11 $ 0.26
Net income $ 0.15 $ 0.11 $ 0.26

Dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.24 $ � $ 0.24

Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 58,158 � 58,158
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 58,283 � 58,283

Components of other comprehensive income:
Net income $ 11,261 $ 6,229 $ 17,490
Unrealized gain (loss) on common stock investment 881 � 881
Unrealized gain (loss) on preferred stock investment � (286 ) (286 )
Total comprehensive income $ 12,142 $ 5,943 $ 18,085
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2005
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Revenues
Rental income $ 22,514 $ 617 $ 23,131
Mortgage interest income 1,240 � 1,240
Other investment income � net 385 408 793
Miscellaneous 1,146 � 1,146
Total operating revenues 25,285 1,025 26,310

Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 6,044 � 6,044
General and administrative 2,123 � 2,123
Provision for uncollectible mortgages, notes and accounts receivable 83 � 83
Leasehold expiration expense 750 � 750
Total operating expenses 9,000 � 9,000

Income before other income and expense 16,285 1,025 17,310
Other income (expense):
Interest and other investment income 24 � 24
Interest (6,948 ) � (6,948 )
Interest � amortization of deferred financing costs (525 ) � (525 )
Provision for impairment on equity securities (3,360 ) � (3,360 )
Change in fair value of derivatives � (229 ) (229 )
Total other expense (10,809 ) (229 ) (11,038 )

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 5,476 796 6,272
Provision for income taxes � (606 ) (606 )
Income from continuing operations 5,476 190 5,666
Loss from discontinued operations (3,219 ) � (3,219 )
Net income 2,257 190 2,447
Preferred stock dividends (2,864 ) � (2,864 )
Preferred stock conversion and redemption charges (2,013 ) � (2,013 )
Net income available to common $ (2,620 ) $ 190 $ (2,430 )

Income per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ 0.02
Net income $ (0.05 ) $ 0.00 $ (0.05 )
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.01 $ 0.01 $ 0.02
Net income $ (0.05 ) $ 0.00 $ (0.05 )

Dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.21 $ � $ 0.21

Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 51,031 � 51,031
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 51,365 � 51,365

Components of other comprehensive income:
Net income $ 2,257 $ 190 $ 2,447
Unrealized gain (loss) on common stock investment � � �
Unrealized gain (loss) on preferred stock investment � (264 ) (264 )
Total comprehensive income $ 2,257 $ (74 ) $ 2,183
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2006
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Revenues
Rental income $ 57,975 $ 1,928 $ 59,903
Mortgage interest income 2,338 � 2,338
Other investment income � net 1,058 826 1,884
Miscellaneous 441 � 441
Total operating revenues 61,812 2,754 64,566

Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 15,060 � 15,060
General and administrative 4,662 � 4,662
Total operating expenses 19,722 � 19,722

Income before other income and expense 42,090 2,754 44,844
Other income (expense):
Interest and other investment income 182 � 182
Interest (19,056 ) � (19,056 )
Interest � amortization of deferred financing costs (1,074 ) � (1,074 )
Interest � refinancing costs (3,485 ) � (3,485 )
Change in fair value of derivatives � 7,908 7,908
Total other expense (23,433 ) 7,908 (15,525 )

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 18,657 10,662 29,319
Provision for income taxes � (1,139 ) (1,139 )
Income from continuing operations 18,657 9,523 28,180
Loss from discontinued operations (515 ) � (515 )
Net income 18,142 9,523 27,665
Preferred stock dividends (4,962 ) � (4,962 )
Net income available to common $ 13,180 $ 9,523 $ 22,703

Income per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.24 $ 0.16 $ 0.40
Net income $ 0.23 $ 0.16 $ 0.39
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.24 $ 0.16 $ 0.40
Net income $ 0.23 $ 0.16 $ 0.39

Dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.47 $ � $ 0.47

Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 57,787 � 57,787
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 57,881 � 57,881

Components of other comprehensive income:
Net income $ 18,142 $ 9,523 $ 27,665
Unrealized gain (loss) on common stock investment 1,580 � 1,580
Unrealized gain (loss) on preferred stock investment � (590 ) (590 )
Total comprehensive income $ 19,722 $ 8,933 $ 28,655

16

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

23



Six Months Ended June 30, 2005
As Reported Adjustments Restated

Revenues
Rental income $ 44,262 $ 1,320 $ 45,582
Mortgage interest income 3,196 � 3,196
Other investment income � net 682 815 1,497
Miscellaneous 4,312 � 4,312
Total operating revenues 52,452 2,135 54,587

Expenses
Depreciation and amortization 11,742 � 11,742
General and administrative 4,235 � 4,235
Provision for uncollectible mortgages, notes and accounts receivable 83 � 83
Leasehold expiration expense 750 � 750
Total operating expenses 16,810 � 16,810

Income before other income and expense 35,642 2,135 37,777
Other income (expense):
Interest and other investment income 65 � 65
Interest (13,722 ) � (13,722 )
Interest � amortization of deferred financing costs (1,031 ) � (1,031 )
Provision for impairment on equity securities (3,360 ) � (3,360 )
Change in fair value of derivatives � (411 ) (411 )
Total other expense (18,048 ) (411 ) (18,459 )

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 17,594 1,724 19,318
Provision for income taxes � (1,188 ) (1,188 )
Income from continuing operations 17,594 536 18,130
Loss from discontinued operations (6,033 ) � (6,033 )
Net income 11,561 536 12,097
Preferred stock dividends (6,423 ) � (6,423 )
Preferred stock conversion and redemption charges (2,013 ) � (2,013 )
Net income available to common $ 3,125 $ 536 $ 3,661

Income per common share:
Basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.18 $ 0.01 $ 0.19
Net income $ 0.06 $ 0.01 $ 0.07
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.18 $ 0.01 $ 0.19
Net income $ 0.06 $ 0.01 $ 0.07

Dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.41 $ � $ 0.41

Weighted-average shares outstanding, basic 50,980 � 50,980
Weighted-average shares outstanding, diluted 51,339 � 51,339

Components of other comprehensive income:
Net income $ 11,561 $ 536 $ 12,097
Unrealized gain (loss) on common stock investment � � �
Unrealized gain (loss) on preferred stock investment � (627 ) (627 )
Total comprehensive income $ 11,561 $ (91 ) $ 11,470
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NOTE 3 � PROPERTIES

In the ordinary course of our business activities, we periodically evaluate investment opportunities and extend credit to customers.  We also
regularly engage in lease and loan extensions and modifications. Additionally, we actively monitor and manage our investment portfolio with
the objectives of improving credit quality and increasing returns.  In connection with portfolio management, we may engage in various
collection and foreclosure activities.

If we acquire real estate pursuant to a foreclosure, lease termination or bankruptcy proceeding and do not immediately re-lease or sell the
properties to new operators, the assets will be included on the balance sheet as �foreclosed real estate properties,� and the value of such assets is
reported at the lower of cost or estimated fair value.

The table below summarizes our number of properties and investment by category for the six months ended June 30, 2006:

Mortgage Total
Leased Notes Facilities Healthcare
Property Receivable Held for Sale Facilities

Facility Count
Balance at December 31, 2005 192 32 3 227
Properties sold/mortgages paid � (15 ) (3 ) (18 )
Properties transferred to assets held for sale (1 ) � 1 �
Properties transferred to purchase/leaseback 7 (7 ) � �
Balance at June 30, 2006 198 10 1 209

Investment ($000�s)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 996,127 $ 104,522 $ 1,243 $ 1,101,892
Properties sold/mortgages paid � (48,990 ) (1,860 ) (50,850 )
Properties transferred to assets held for sale (865 ) � 865 �
Properties transferred to purchase/leaseback 61,750 (22,750 ) � 39,000
Impairment on properties (121 ) � � (121 )
Capital expenditures and other 3,335 (401 ) � 2,934
Balance at June 30, 2006 $ 1,060,226 $ 32,381 $ 248 $ 1,092,855

Leased Property

Our leased real estate properties, represented by 196 long-term care facilities and two rehabilitation hospitals at June 30, 2006, are leased under
provisions of single leases and master leases with initial terms typically ranging from 5 to 15 years, plus renewal options.  Substantially all of the
leases and master leases provide for minimum annual rentals that are subject to annual increases based upon increases in the Consumer Price
Index (�CPI�).  Under the terms of the leases, the lessee is responsible for all maintenance, repairs, taxes and insurance on the leased properties.

Set forth below is a summary of the transactions that occurred in the six months ended June 30, 2006.

Haven Eldercare, LLC

•  During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Haven Eldercare, LLC (�Haven�), an existing operator of
ours, entered into a $39 million first mortgage loan with General Electric Capital Corporation (�GE Loan�).  Haven used
the $39 million of proceeds to partially repay on a $62 million mortgage it has with us.  Simultaneously, we
subordinated the payment of our remaining $23 million of the mortgage note, due in October 2012, to that of the GE
Loan.  As a result of this transaction, the interest rate on our remaining mortgage note to Haven rose from 10% to
approximately 15%, with annual escalators.

•  In conjunction with the above transactions and the application of FIN 46R, we consolidated the financial
statements and related real estate of this Haven entity into our financial statements.  The
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consolidation resulted in the following changes to our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2006: (1) an increase in total gross investments
of $39.0 million; (2) an increase in accumulated depreciation of $0.8 million; (3) an increase in other long-term borrowings of $39.0 million; and
(4) a reduction of $0.8 million in cumulative net earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2006 due to the increased depreciation expense. 
General Electric Capital Corporation and Haven�s other creditors do not have recourse to our assets.  We have an option to purchase the
mortgaged facilities for a fixed price in 2012.  Our results of operations reflect the effects of the consolidation of this entity, which is being
accounted for similarly to our other purchase-leaseback transactions.

Acquisitions

•  There were no acquisitions made during the three and six months ended June 30, 2006.

Assets Sold or Held for Sale

Assets Sold

•  On June 30, 2006, we sold two SNFs in California resulting in an accounting loss of approximately $0.1
million.

•  On March 31, 2006, we sold a SNF in Illinois resulting in an accounting loss of approximately $0.2 million.

Held for Sale

•  At June 30, 2006, we had one asset held for sale with a net book value of approximately $0.2 million.

•  During the three months ended March 31, 2006, a $0.1 million provision for impairment charge was
recorded to reduce the carrying value to its sales price of one facility that was under contract to be sold that was
subsequently sold during the second quarter of 2006.

Mortgage Notes Receivable

Mortgage notes receivable relate to 10 long-term care facilities.  The mortgage notes are secured by first mortgage liens on the borrowers�
underlying real estate and personal property.  The mortgage notes receivable relate to facilities located in five states, operated by seven
independent healthcare operating companies.  We monitor compliance with mortgages and when necessary have initiated collection, foreclosure
and other proceedings with respect to certain outstanding loans.  As of June 30, 2006, we had no foreclosed property, and none of our mortgages
were in foreclosure proceedings.

Mortgage interest income is recognized as earned over the terms of the related mortgage notes.  Reserves are taken against earned revenues from
mortgage interest when collection of amounts due becomes questionable or when negotiations for restructurings of troubled operators lead to
lower expectations regarding ultimate collection.  When collection is uncertain, mortgage interest income on impaired mortgage loans is
recognized as received after taking into account application of security deposits.

Hickory Creek Healthcare Foundation, Inc.

On June 16, 2006, we received approximately $10 million in proceeds on a mortgage loan payoff.  We held mortgages on 15 facilities located in
Indiana, representing 619 beds.

19

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

28



Haven Eldercare, LLC.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Haven used the $39 million of proceeds from the GE Loan to partially repay on a $62 million
mortgage it has with us.  Simultaneously, we subordinated the payment of its remaining $23 million on the mortgage note to that of the GE Loan
(see Note 3 � Properties; Leased Property, above).

NOTE 4 � CONCENTRATION OF RISK

As of June 30, 2006, our portfolio of domestic investments consisted of 209 healthcare facilities, located in 27 states and operated by 34
third-party operators.  Our gross investment in these facilities, net of impairments and before reserve for uncollectible loans, totaled
approximately $1.1 billion at June 30, 2006, with approximately 98% of our real estate investments related to long-term care facilities.  This
portfolio is made up of 196 long-term healthcare facilities, two rehabilitation hospitals owned and leased to third parties, fixed rate mortgages on
10 long-term healthcare facilities and one facility held for sale.  At June 30, 2006, we also held miscellaneous investments of approximately $43
million, consisting primarily of secured loans to third-party operators of our facilities.

At June 30, 2006, approximately 25% of our real estate investments were operated by two public companies:  Sun Healthcare Group, Inc. (�Sun�)
(15%) and Advocat (10%).  Our largest private company operators (by investment) were CommuniCare Health Services, Inc. (�CommuniCare�)
(18%), Haven (11%), Guardian LTC Management, Inc. (7%) and Essex Healthcare Corporation (7%).  No other operator represents more than
5% of our investments.  The three states in which we had our highest concentration of investments were Ohio (25%), Florida (10%) and
Pennsylvania (9%) at June 30, 2006.

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2006, our revenues from operations totaled $32.4 million, of which approximately $5.8 million were
from Sun (18%), $5.1 million from CommuniCare (16%) and $3.6 million from Advocat (11%).  For the six-month period ended June 30, 2006,
our revenues from operations totaled $64.6 million, of which approximately $11.6 million were from Sun (18%), $10.1 million from
CommuniCare (16%) and $7.2 million from Advocat (11%).  No other operator generated more than 10% of our revenues from operations for
the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006.

Sun and Advocat are subject to the reporting requirements of the SEC and are required to file with the SEC annual reports containing audited
financial information and quarterly reports containing unaudited interim financial information.  Sun�s and Advocat�s filings with the SEC can be
found at the SEC�s website at www.sec.gov.  We are providing this data for information purposes only, and you are encouraged to obtain Sun�s
and Advocat�s publicly available filings from the SEC.

NOTE 5 - DIVIDENDS

In order to qualify as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends (other than capital gain dividends) to our stockholders in an amount at least
equal to (A) the sum of (i) 90% of our �REIT taxable income� (computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain),
and (ii) 90% of the net income (after tax), if any, from foreclosure property, minus (B) the sum of certain items of non-cash income. In addition,
if we dispose of any built-in gain asset during a recognition period, we will be required to distribute at least 90% of the built-in gain (after tax), if
any, recognized on the disposition of such asset. Such distributions must be paid in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following
taxable year if declared before we timely file our tax return for such year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such
declaration. In addition, such distributions are required to be made pro rata, with no preference to any share of stock as compared with other
shares of the same class, and with no preference to
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one class of stock as compared with another class except to the extent that such class is entitled to such a preference. To the extent that we do not
distribute all of our net capital gain or do distribute at least 90%, but less than 100% of our �REIT taxable income,� as adjusted, we will be subject
to tax thereon at regular ordinary and capital gain corporate tax rates.  In addition, our $200 million revolving senior secured credit facility
(�Credit Facility�) has certain financial covenants that limit the distribution of dividends paid during a fiscal quarter to no more than 95% of our
aggregate cumulative funds from operations (�FFO�) as defined in the loan agreement governing the Credit Facility (the �Loan Agreement�), unless
a greater distribution is required to maintain REIT status.  The Loan Agreement defines FFO as net income (or loss) plus depreciation and
amortization and shall be adjusted for charges related to: (i) restructuring our debt; (ii) redemption of preferred stock; (iii) litigation charges up
to $5.0 million; (iv) non-cash charges for accounts and notes receivable up to $5.0 million; (v) non-cash compensation related expenses; and (vi)
non-cash impairment charges.

Common Dividends

On July 17, 2006, the Board of Directors announced a common stock dividend of $0.24 per share to be paid August 15, 2006 to common
stockholders of record on July 31, 2006.

On April 18, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a common stock dividend of $0.24 per share, an increase of $0.01 per common share
compared to the prior quarter.  The common dividend was paid May 15, 2006 to common stockholders of record on April 28, 2006.

On January 17, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a common stock dividend of $0.23 per share, an increase of $0.01 per common share
compared to the prior quarter.  The common stock dividend was paid February 15, 2006 to common stockholders of record on January 31, 2006.

Series D Preferred Dividends

On July 17, 2006, the Board of Directors declared the regular quarterly dividends for the 8.375% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Stock (�Series D Preferred Stock�) to stockholders of record onJuly 31, 2006.  The stockholders of record of the Series D Preferred Stock on July
31, 2006 will be paid dividends in the amount of $0.52344 per preferred share on August 15, 2006.  The liquidation preference for our Series D
Preferred Stock is $25.00 per share. Regular quarterly preferred dividends for the Series D Preferred Stock represent dividends for the period
May 1, 2006 through July 31, 2006.

On April 18, 2006, the Board of Directors declared regular quarterly dividends of approximately $0.52344 per preferred share on the Series D
Preferred Stock that were paid May 15, 2006 to preferred stockholders of record on April 28, 2006.

On January 17, 2006, the Board of Directors declared regular quarterly dividends of approximately $0.52344 per preferred share on the Series D
Preferred Stock that were paid February 15, 2006 to preferred stockholders of record on January 31, 2006.

NOTE 6 � TAXES

So long as we qualify as a REIT and, among other things, we distribute 90% of our taxable income, we will not be subject to Federal income
taxes on our income, except as described below. We are permitted to own up to 100% of a �taxable REIT subsidiary� (�TRS�).  Currently, we have
two TRSs that are taxable as corporations and that pay federal, state and local income tax on their net income at the applicable corporate rates. 
These TRSs had net operating loss carry-forwards as of June 30, 2006 of $10.1 million.  These loss carry-forwards
were fully reserved with a valuation allowance due to uncertainties regarding realization.

21

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

30



During the fourth quarter of 2006, we determined that certain terms of the Advocat Series B non-voting, redeemable convertible preferred stock
could be interpreted as affecting our compliance with federal income tax rules applicable to REITs regarding related party tenant income.  As
such, Advocat, one of our lessees, may be deemed to be a �related party tenant� under applicable federal income tax rules.  In such event, our
rental income from Advocat would not be qualifying income under the gross income tests that are applicable to
REITs.  In order to maintain qualification as a REIT, we annually must satisfy certain tests regarding the source of our
gross income.  The applicable federal income tax rules provide a �savings clause� for REITs that fail to satisfy the REIT
gross income tests if such failure is due to reasonable cause.  A REIT that qualifies for the savings clause will retain
its REIT status but will pay a tax under section 857(b)(5) and related interest.  We currently plan to submit to the IRS
a request for a closing agreement to resolve the �related party tenant� issue.  While we believe there are valid arguments
that Advocat should not be deemed a �related party tenant,� the matter is not free from doubt, and we believe it is in our
best interest to request a closing agreement in order to resolve the matter, minimize potential interest charges and
obtain assurances regarding our continuing REIT status.  By submitting a request for a closing agreement, we intent to
establish that any failure to satisfy the gross income tests was due to reasonable cause (see Note 2 � Restatement of
Previously Issued Financial Statements).  In the event that it is determined that the �savings clause� described above
does not apply, we could be treated as having failed to qualify as a REIT for one or more taxable years.  If we fail to
qualify for taxation as a REIT for any taxable year, our income will be taxed at regular corporate rates, and we could
be disqualified as a REIT for the following four taxable years.

As a result of the potential related party tenant issue described above and further discussed in Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial
Statements, we have recorded a $0.6 million and $1.1 million provision for income taxes, including related interest expense, for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, respectively. 
The amount accrued represents the estimated liability, which remains subject to final resolution and therefore is subject to change.  In addition,
in October 2006, we restructured our Advocat relationship and have been advised by tax counsel that we will not receive any non-qualifying
related party tenant income from Advocat in future fiscal years.  Accordingly, we do not expect to incur tax expense associated with related
party tenant income in future periods commencing January 1, 2007.  We will continue to accrue an income tax liability related to this matter
during 2006.

NOTE 7 � STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Options

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stock based compensation using the intrinsic value method as defined by APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.  Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted FAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method. 
Accordingly, we have not restated prior period amounts.  The additional expense to be recorded in 2006 as a result of this adoption is
approximately $3 thousand.  Under the provisions of FAS No. 123R, the �Unamortized restricted stock awards� line on our consolidated balance
sheet, a contra-equity line representing the amount of unrecognized share-based compensation costs, is no longer presented.  Accordingly, for
the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, the amount that had been on the �Unamortized restricted stock awards� line was reversed through the
�Common stock and additional paid-in-capital� line on our consolidated balance sheet.

Under the terms of our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2000 Plan�), we reserved 3,500,000 shares of common stock.  The exercise price per share
of an option under the 2000 Plan cannot be reduced after the date of grant, nor can an option be cancelled in exchange for an option with a lower
exercise price per share.  The 2000 Plan provides for non-employee directors to receive options that vest over three years while other grants vest
over the period required in the agreement applicable to the individual recipient.  Directors, officers, employees and consultants are eligible to
participate in the 2000 Plan.  At June 30, 2006, there were
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outstanding options for 52,581 shares of common stock granted to eight eligible participants under the 2000 Plan.  Additionally, 355,655 shares
of restricted stock have been granted under the provisions of the 2000 Plan, and as of June 30, 2006, there were no shares of unvested restricted
stock outstanding under the 2000 Plan.

At June 30, 2006, under the 2000 Plan, there were outstanding options for 50,912 shares of common stock granted to eight participants currently
exercisable with a weighted-average exercise price of $13.58, with exercise prices ranging from $2.96 to $37.20.  There were 559,960 shares
available for future grants as of June 30, 2006.  A breakdown of the options outstanding under the 2000 Plan as of June 30, 2006, by price range,
is presented below:

Option Price
Range Number

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining Life
(Years)

Number
Exercisable

Weighted
Average Price
on Options
Exercisable

$2.96 -$3.81 11,918 $ 3.41 5.51 11,918 $ 3.41
$6.02 -$9.33 22,330 $ 6.67 6.06 20,661 $ 6.46

$20.25 -$37.20 18,333 $ 28.23 2.02 18,333 $ 28.23

On April 20, 2004, our Board of Directors approved the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2004 Plan�), which was subsequently approved by our
stockholders at our annual meeting held on June 3, 2004.  Under the terms of the 2004 Plan, we reserved 3,000,000 shares of common stock. 
The exercise price per share of an option under the 2004 Plan cannot be less than fair market value (as defined in the 2004 Plan) on the date of
grant.  The exercise price per share of an option under the 2004 Plan cannot be reduced after the date of grant, nor can an option be cancelled in
exchange for an option with a lower exercise price per share.  Directors, officers, employees and consultants are eligible to participate in the
2004 Plan.  As of June 30, 2006, a total of 348,695 shares of restricted stock and 317,500 restricted stock units have been granted under the 2004
Plan, and as of June 30, 2006, there were no outstanding options to purchase shares of common stock under the 2004 Plan.

At June 30, 2006, the only options outstanding to purchase shares of our common stock were options issued under our 2000 Plan for 52,581
shares of common stock. For the quarter ended June 30, 2006, no options were granted under any of our stock incentive plans.  The following is
a summary of option activity under the 2000 Plan:

Stock Options
Number of
Shares Exercise Price

Weighted-
Average Price

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 227,440 $ 2.760 - $ 37.205 $ 5.457 4.6
Granted during 1st quarter 2006
Exercised (174,191 ) 2.760 - 9.330 2.979 �
Cancelled (668 ) 22.452 - 22.452 22.452 �
Outstanding at March 31, 2006 52,581 $ 2.960 - $ 37.205 $ 13.448 4.4
Granted during 2nd quarter 2006
Exercised � � - � � �
Cancelled � � - � � �
Outstanding at June 30, 2006 52,581 $ 2.960 - $ 37.205 $ 13.448 4.2

Vested at June 30, 2006 50,912 $ 2.960 - $ 37.205 $ 13.583 4.0
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Non-Vested Options
Number of
Shares Exercise Price

Weighted-
Average Price

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Non-vested at December 31, 2005 74,985 $ 2.760 - $ 9.330 $ 3.200 7.0
Vested during 1st quarter 2006 (73,316 ) 2.760 - 9.330 3.059 �
Non-vested at March 31, 2006 1,669 $ 9.330 - $ 9.330 $ 9.330 7.8
Vested during 2nd quarter 2006 � � - � � �
Non-vested at June 30, 2006 1,669 $ 9.330 - $9.330 $ 9.330 7.5

Cash received from exercise under all stock-based payment arrangements for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $0.9 million and
$0.1 million, respectively.  Cash used to settle equity instruments granted under stock-based payment arrangements for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005 was $0.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

In 2005, we accounted for our stock-based compensation arrangements in accordance with the intrinsic value method as defined by Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.  The following table presents the effect on net income and
earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FAS No. 123R to our stock-based compensation.

The reported and pro forma net income and earnings per share figures for 2006 in the table are the same because share-based compensation
expense is calculated under the provisions of FAS No. 123R.  The 2006 amounts are included in the table below to provide detail for
comparative purposes to the 2005 amounts.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Restated Restated Restated Restated
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income (loss) to common stockholders $ 15,009 $ (2,430 ) $ 22,703 $ 3,661
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net income (loss) to
common stockholders 292 285 585 571

15,301 (2,145 ) 23,288 4,232
Less: Stock-based compensation expense determined under the fair value
based method for all awards 292 342 585 690
Pro forma net income (loss) to common stockholders $ 15,009 $ (2,487 ) $ 22,703 $ 3,542

Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic, as reported $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07
Basic, pro forma $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07
Diluted, as reported $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07
Diluted, pro forma $ 0.26 $ (0.05 ) $ 0.39 $ 0.07

Restricted Stock

On September 10, 2004, we entered into restricted stock agreements with four executive officers under the 2004 Plan.  A total of 317,500 shares
of restricted stock were granted, which equated to
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approximately $3.3 million of deferred compensation.  The shares vest thirty-three and one-third percent (33 1/3%) on each of January 1, 2005,
January 1, 2006 and January 1, 2007 so long as the executive officer remains employed on the vesting date, with vesting accelerating upon a
qualifying termination of employment or upon the occurrence of a change of control (as defined in the applicable restricted stock agreements). 
As a result of the grant, we recorded $0.3 million and $0.6 million of non-cash compensation expense for the three and six-month periods ended
June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2006, we issued 1,822 shares of restricted common stock to each non-employee director and an
additional 2,000 shares of restricted common stock to the Chairman of the Board under the 2004 Plan for a total of 11,110 shares.  These shares
represent a payment of the portion of the directors� annual retainer that is payable in shares of our common stock.

As of June 30, 2006, there was $670 thousand of total unrecognized compensation cost related to these restricted stock awards.

Performance Restricted Stock Units

On September 10, 2004, we entered into performance restricted stock unit agreements with our four executive officers under the 2004 Plan.  A
total of 317,500 restricted stock units were issued under the 2004 Plan and will fully vest into shares of common stock when our company
attains $0.30 per share of adjusted funds from operations (as defined in the applicable restricted stock unit agreements) for two (2) consecutive
quarters, with vesting accelerating upon a qualifying termination of employment or upon the occurrence of a change of control (as defined in the
applicable restricted stock unit agreements).  The performance restricted stock units expire on December 31, 2007 if the performance criteria has
not been met.  As of June 30, 2006, we achieved the initial $0.30 per share adjusted funds from operations criteria as defined in the applicable
restricted stock unit agreements.  However, we have determined that it is not probable at this time that we will achieve the second consecutive
quarter of $0.30 per share adjusted funds from operations, and therefore, it is not probable at this time that the restricted stock units will vest.  In
accordance with FAS No. 123R (i.e., compensation expense for a performance-based stock award shall be recognized when the satisfaction of
the performance conditions that cause the award to vest are probable to occur), we have not recorded any compensation expense associated with
the performance restricted stock units.

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 128, Earnings per Share, (�FAS No. 128�), the restricted stock unit shares are not included in the
computation of basic EPS until all necessary conditions for the vesting of the restricted units have been satisfied.  However, in accordance with
FAS No. 128, the units are included in the quarterly and year-to-date diluted EPS as of June 30, 2006, using the treasury stock method as we
have achieved the initial $0.30 per share adjusted funds from operations during the quarter ended June 30, 2006.  See Note 12 � Earnings per
Share.

NOTE 8 � INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

Marketable securities classified as available-for-sale are stated at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income.  Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other-than-temporary on securities held as
available-for-sale are included in investment income. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. If events or
circumstances indicate that the fair value of an investment has declined below its carrying value and we consider the decline to be �other than
temporary,� the investment is written down to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized.

At June 30, 2006, we had the following two marketable securities:
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Sun Healthcare Common Stock Investment

•  Under our 2004 restructuring agreement with Sun, we received the right to convert deferred base rent owed
to us, totaling approximately $7.8 million, into 800,000 shares of Sun�s common stock, subject to certain non-dilution
provisions and the right of Sun to pay cash in an amount equal to the value of that stock in lieu of issuing stock to us.

•  On March 30, 2004, we notified Sun of our intention to exercise our right to convert the deferred base rent
into fully paid and non-assessable shares of Sun�s common stock.  On April 16, 2004, we received a stock certificate
for 760,000 restricted shares of Sun�s common stock and cash in the amount of approximately $0.5 million in
exchange for the remaining 40,000 shares of Sun�s common stock.  On July 23, 2004, Sun registered these shares with
the SEC.  We are accounting for the 760,000 shares received as �available for sale� marketable securities with changes
in market value recorded in other comprehensive income.

•  In accordance with FASB No. 115, for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006, we recorded a
$0.9 million and $1.6 million adjustment to other comprehensive income, respectively, to adjust our holdings in Sun
common stock to their then current fair market value.

Advocat Subordinated Debt and Convertible Preferred Stock Investments

•  Under our 2000 restructuring agreement with Advocat, we received the following:  (i) 393,658 shares of
Advocat�s Series B non-voting, redeemable (on or after September 30, 2007), convertible preferred stock, which was
convertible into up to 706,576 shares of Advocat�s common stock (representing  9.9% of the outstanding shares of
Advocat�s common stock on a fully diluted, as-converted basis and accruing dividends at 7% per annum); and (ii) a
secured convertible subordinated note in the amount of $1.7 million bearing interest at 7% per annum with a
September 30, 2007 maturity (see Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements).

•  In accordance with FAS No. 115, the Advocat Series B security is a compound financial instrument.  The
embedded derivative value of the conversion feature is recorded separately at fair market value in accordance with
FAS No. 133.  The non-derivative portion of the security is classified as an available-for-sale investment and is stated
at its fair value with unrealized gains or losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income.  For the three-
and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006, we recorded an adjustment of $0.3 million and $0.6 million to other
comprehensive income, respectively, and for the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2005, we recorded an
adjustment of $0.3 million and $0.6 million to other comprehensive income, respectively, to adjust the non-derivative
portion of the Advocat security to its then current fair market value.

•  In accordance with FASB No. 114 and FASB Statement No. 118, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of
a Loan � Income Recognition and Disclosures, the Advocat secured convertible subordinated note is fully reserved
and accounted for using the cost-recovery method applying cash received against the outstanding principal balance
prior to recording interest income.

NOTE 9 � FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS

Bank Credit Agreements

At June 30, 2006, we had no outstanding borrowings under our $200 million revolving senior secured credit facility (the �New Credit Facility�);
however, $2.9 million was utilized for the issuance of letters of credit, leaving availability of $197.1 million.  The New Credit Facility, entered
into on March

26

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

35



Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

36



31, 2006, is being provided by Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, UBS Securities
LLC, General Electric Capital Corporation, LaSalle Bank N.A., and Citicorp North America, Inc. and will be used for acquisitions and general
corporate purposes.

The New Credit Facility replaced our previous $200 million senior secured credit facility (the �Prior Credit Facility�), that was terminated on
March 31, 2006.  We will realize a 125 basis point savings on LIBOR-based loans under the New Credit Facility, as compared to LIBOR-based
loans under our Prior Credit Facility.  The New Credit Facility matures on March 31, 2010, and includes an �accordion feature� that permits us to
expand our borrowing capacity to $300 million during our first two years.

For the three-month period ending March 31, 2006, we recorded a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $2.7 million relating to the
write-off of deferred financing costs associated with the termination of our Prior Credit Facility.

Our long-term borrowings require us to meet certain property level financial covenants and corporate financial covenants, including prescribed
leverage, fixed charge coverage, minimum net worth, limitations on additional indebtedness and limitations on dividend payouts.  As of June 30,
2006, we were in compliance with all property level and corporate financial covenants.

On October 23, 2006, we entered into a Second Amendment, Waiver and Consent to Credit Agreement (the �Second Amendment�) pursuant to
which the lenders under the New Credit Facility waived any potential misrepresentations and events of default that could have been caused by
the Restatement.

$100 Million Aggregate Principal Amount of 6.95% Unsecured Notes Tender and Redemption

On December 16, 2005, we initiated a tender offer and consent solicitation for all of our outstanding $100 million aggregate principal amount
6.95% notes due 2007 (the �2007 Notes�).  On December 30, 2005, we accepted for purchase 79.3% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2007
Notes outstanding that were tendered.  On December 30, 2005, our Board of Directors also authorized the redemption of all outstanding 2007
Notes that were not otherwise tendered.  On December 30, 2005, upon our irrevocable funding of the full redemption price for the 2007 Notes
and certain other acts required by the Indenture governing the 2007 Notes, the Trustee of the 2007 Notes certified in writing to us (the �Certificate
of Satisfaction and Discharge�) that the Indenture was satisfied and discharged as of December 30, 2005, except for certain administrative
provisions.  In accordance with FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of
Liabilities, (�FAS 140�) we removed 79.3% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2007 Notes, which were tendered in our tender offer and
consent solicitation, and the corresponding portion of the funds held in trust by the Trustee to pay the tender price from our balance sheet and
recognized $2.8 million of additional interest expense associated with the tender offer.  On January 18, 2006, we completed the redemption of
the remaining 2007 Notes not otherwise tendered. Accordingly, we reduced other assets, representing the funds deposited with the Trustee, and
unsecured borrowings by $21 million. In connection with the redemption and in accordance with FAS 140, we recognized $0.8 million of
additional interest expense in the first quarter of 2006.  As of January 18, 2006, none of the 2007 Notes remained outstanding.

Other Long-Term Borrowings

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Haven used the $39 million of proceeds from the GE Loan to partially repay a portion of a $62
million mortgage it has with us.  Simultaneously, we subordinated the payment of its remaining $23 million on the mortgage note to that of the
GE Loan.  In conjunction with the above transactions and the application of FIN 46R, we consolidated the financial statements of this Haven
entity into our financial statements, which contained the long-term borrowings with General Electric Capital Corporation of $39.0 million.  The
loan has an interest rate of
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approximately seven percent and is due in 2012.  The lender of the $39.0 million does not have recourse to our assets (see Note 3 �
Properties; Leased Property).

NOTE 10 � LITIGATION

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims and other actions arising out of the normal course of business. While any legal proceeding or
claim has an element of uncertainty, management believes that the outcome of each lawsuit, claim or legal proceeding that is pending or
threatened, or all of them combined, will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

We and several of our wholly-owned subsidiaries have been named as defendants in professional liability claims related to our former owned
and operated facilities.  Other third-party managers responsible for the day-to-day operations of these facilities have also been named as
defendants in these claims.  In these suits, patients of certain previously owned and operated facilities have alleged significant damages,
including punitive damages against the defendants.  The majority of these lawsuits representing the most significant amount of exposure were
settled in 2004.  There currently is one lawsuit pending that is in the discovery stage, and we are unable to predict the likely outcome of this
lawsuit at this time.

NOTE 11 � DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, requires the
presentation of the net operating results of facilities sold during 2006 or currently classified as held-for-sale as income from discontinued
operations for all periods presented.  We incurred a net loss from discontinued operations of approximately $0.1 million and $0.5 million for the
three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The following table summarizes the results of operations of facilities sold or held-for-sale during the three and six months ended June 30, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Revenues
Rental income $ � $ 1,430 $ � $ 2,896
Other income � 12 � 24
Subtotal revenues � 1,442 � 2,920
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization � 496 9 1,051
General and administrative 3 � 4 �
Provision for impairment � � 121 3,700
Subtotal expenses 3 496 134 4,751

Income (loss) before loss on sale of assets (3 ) 946 (134 ) (1,831 )
Loss on assets sold � net (133 ) (4,165 ) (381 ) (4,202 )
Loss from discontinued operations $ (136 ) $ (3,219 ) $ (515 ) $ (6,033 )

NOTE 12 � EARNINGS PER SHARE

We calculate basic and diluted earnings per common share (�EPS�) in accordance with FAS No. 128.  The computation of basic EPS is computed
by dividing net income available to common
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stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the relevant period.  Diluted EPS is computed
using the treasury stock method, which is net income divided by the total weighted-average number of common outstanding shares plus the
effect of dilutive common equivalent shares during the respective period.  Dilutive common shares reflect the assumed issuance of additional
common shares pursuant to certain of our share based compensation plans, including stock options, restricted stock and restrictive stock units.

For the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the dilutive effect from stock options was immaterial.

NOTE 13 � SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 1, 2006, we completed a transaction with Litchfield Investment Company, LLC and its affiliates (�Litchfield�) to
purchase 30 skilled nursing facilities and one independent living center for a total investment of approximately $171
million.  The facilities total 3,847 beds and are located in the states of Colorado (5), Florida (7), Idaho (1), Louisiana
(13), and Texas (5). The facilities were subject to master leases with three national healthcare providers, which are
existing tenants of the Company.  The tenants are Home Quality Management, Inc. (�HQM�), Nexion Health, Inc.
(�Nexion�), and Peak Medical Corporation, which was acquired by Sun in December of 2005.  We used a combination
of cash on hand and $150 million of New Credit Facility borrowings to finance the Litchfield transaction.

Simultaneously with the close of the purchase transaction, the seven HQM facilities were combined into an Amended and Restated Master Lease
containing 13 facilities between us and HQM.  In addition, the 18 Nexion facilities were combined into an Amended and Restated Master Lease
containing 22 facilities between us and Nexion.

We entered into a Master Lease, Assignment and Assumption Agreement with Litchfield on the six Sun facilities.  These six facilities are
currently under a master lease that expires on September 30, 2007.

The total incremental annualized rent from the 31 facility transaction will be approximately $17.1 million.
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Item 2 � Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-looking Statements, Reimbursement Issues and Other Factors Affecting Future Results

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this document. 
This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws, including statements regarding potential
financings and potential future changes in reimbursement.  These statements relate to our expectations, beliefs, intentions, plans, objectives,
goals, strategies, future events, performance and underlying assumptions and other statements other than statements of historical facts.  In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking terminology including, but not limited to, terms such as
�may,� �will,� �anticipates,� �expects,� �believes,� �intends,� �should� or comparable terms or the negative thereof.  These statements are
based on information available on the date of this filing and only speak as to the date hereof and no obligation to update such forward-looking
statements should be assumed.  Our actual results may differ materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements contained herein
as a result of a variety of factors, including, among other things:

(i)  those items discussed under �Risk Factors� in Item 1A to our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the
year ended December 31, 2005;

(ii)  uncertainties relating to the business operations of the operators of our assets, including those
relating to reimbursement by third-party payors, regulatory matters and occupancy levels;

(iii)  the ability of any operators in bankruptcy to reject unexpired lease obligations, modify the terms of
our mortgages and impede our ability to collect unpaid rent or interest during the process of a bankruptcy proceeding
and retain security deposits for the debtors� obligations;

(iv)  our ability to sell closed assets on a timely basis and on terms that allow us to realize the carrying
value of these assets;

(v)  our ability to negotiate appropriate modifications to the terms of our credit facility;

(vi)  our ability to manage, re-lease or sell any owned and operated facilities;

(vii)  the availability and cost of capital;

(viii)  competition in the financing of healthcare facilities;

(ix)  regulatory and other changes in the healthcare sector;

(x)  the effect of economic and market conditions generally and, particularly, in the healthcare industry;

(xi)  changes in interest rates;

(xii)  the amount and yield of any additional investments;

(xiii)  changes in tax laws and regulations affecting real estate investment trusts;

(xiv)  our ability to maintain our status as a real estate investment trust; and

(xv)  changes in the ratings of our debt and preferred securities.
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At June 30, 2006, our portfolio of domestic investments consisted of 209 healthcare facilities, located in 27 states and operated by 34 third-party
operators.  Our gross investment in these facilities, net of impairments and before reserve for uncollectible loans, totaled approximately $1.1
billion at June 30, 2006, with approximately 98% of our real estate investments related to long-term care facilities.  This portfolio is made up of
196 long-term healthcare facilities, two rehabilitation hospitals owned and leased to third parties, fixed rate mortgages on 10 long-term
healthcare facilities and one long-term healthcare facility that is currently held for sale.  At June 30, 2006, we also held other investments of
approximately $43 million, consisting primarily of secured loans to third-party operators of our facilities.
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Medicare Reimbursement

All of our properties are used as healthcare facilities; therefore, we are directly affected by the risk associated with the healthcare industry.  Our
lessees and mortgagors, as well as any facilities that may be owned and operated for our own account from time to time, derive a substantial
portion of their net operating revenues from third-party payors, including the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  These programs are highly
regulated by federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and are subject to frequent and substantial change.

In 1997, the Balanced Budget Act significantly reduced spending levels for the Medicare and Medicaid programs, in part because the legislation
modified the payment methodology for skilled nursing facilities (�SNFs�) by shifting payments for services provided to Medicare beneficiaries
from a reasonable cost basis to a prospective payment system.  Under the prospective payment system, SNFs are paid on a per diem prospective
case-mix adjusted basis for all covered services.  Implementation of the prospective payment system has affected each long-term care facility to
a different degree, depending upon the amount of revenue such facility derives from Medicare patients.

Legislation adopted in 1999 and 2000 provided for a few temporary increases to Medicare payment rates, but these temporary increases have
since expired.  Specifically, in 1999 the Balanced Budget Refinement Act included a 4% across-the-board increase of the adjusted federal per
diem payment rates for all patient acuity categories (known as �Resource Utilization Groups� or �RUGs�) that were in effect from April 2000
through September 30, 2002.  In 2000, the Benefits Improvement and Protection Act included a 16.7% increase in the nursing component of the
case-mix adjusted federal periodic payment rate, which was implemented in April 2000 and also expired October 1, 2002.  The October 1, 2002
expiration of these temporary increases has had an adverse impact on the revenues of the operators of SNFs and has negatively impacted some
operators� ability to satisfy their monthly lease or debt payments to us.

The Balanced Budget Refinement Act and the Benefits Improvement and Protection Act also established temporary increases, beginning in
April 2001, to Medicare payment rates to SNFs that were designated to remain in place until the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
(�CMS�) implemented refinements to the existing RUG case-mix classification system to more accurately estimate the cost of non-therapy
ancillary services.  The Balanced Budget Refinement Act provided for a 20% increase for 15 RUG categories until CMS modified the RUG
case-mix classification system.  The Benefits Improvement and Protection Act modified this payment increase by reducing the 20% increase for
three of the 15 RUGs to a 6.7% increase and instituting an additional 6.7% increase for eleven other RUGs.

On August 4, 2005, CMS published a final rule, effective October 1, 2005, establishing Medicare payments for SNFs under the prospective
payment system for federal fiscal year 2006 (October 1, 2005 to September 30, 2006).  The final rule modified the RUG case-mix classification
system and added nine new categories to the system, expanding the number of RUGs from 44 to 53.  The implementation of the RUG
refinements triggered the expiration of the temporary payment increases of 20% and 6.7% established by the Balanced Budget Refinement Act
and the Benefits Improvement and Protection Act, respectively.  Additionally, CMS announced updates in the final rule to reimbursement rates
for SNFs in federal fiscal year 2006 based on an increase in the �full market-basket� of 3.1%.

In the August 4, 2005 notice, CMS estimated that the increases in Medicare reimbursements to SNFs arising from the refinements to the
prospective payment system and the market basket update under the final rule will offset the reductions stemming from the elimination of the
temporary increases during federal fiscal year 2006.  CMS estimated that there will be an overall increase in Medicare payments to SNFs
totaling $20 million in fiscal year 2006 compared to 2005.

On July 27, 2006, CMS posted a notice updating the payment rates to SNFs for fiscal year 2007 (October 1, 2006 to September 30, 2007).  The
market basket increase factor is 3.1% for 2007.  CMS
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estimates that the payment update will increase aggregate payments to SNFs nationwide by approximately $560 million in fiscal year 2007
compared to 2006.

Nonetheless, we cannot accurately predict what effect, if any, these changes will have on our lessees and mortgagors in 2006 and beyond.  These
changes to the Medicare prospective payment system for SNFs, including the elimination of temporary increases, could adversely impact the
revenues of the operators of nursing facilities and could negatively impact the ability of some of our lessees and mortgagors to satisfy their
monthly lease or debt payments to us.

A 128% temporary increase in the per diem amount paid to SNFs for residents who have AIDS took effect on October 1, 2004.  This temporary
payment increase arises from the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (�Medicare Modernization Act�).  The
August 2005 notice announcing the final rule for the SNF prospective payment system for fiscal year 2006 clarified that the increase will remain
in effect for fiscal year 2006, although CMS also noted that the AIDS add-on was not intended to be permanent.

A significant change enacted under the Medicare Modernization Act is the creation of a new prescription drug benefit, Medicare Part D, which
went into effect January 1, 2006.  The significant expansion of benefits for Medicare beneficiaries arising under the expanded prescription drug
benefit could result in financial pressures on the Medicare program that might result in future legislative and regulatory changes with impacts for
our operators.  As part of this new program, the prescription drug benefits for patients who are dually eligible for both Medicare and Medicaid
are being transitioned from Medicaid to Medicare, and many of these patients reside in long-term care facilities.  The Medicare program has
experienced significant operational difficulties in transitioning prescription drug coverage for this population since the benefit went into effect
on January 1, 2006, although it is unclear whether or how issues involving Medicare Part D might have any direct financial impacts on our
operators.

On February 8, 2006, the President signed into law a $39.7 billion budget reconciliation package called the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005
(�Deficit Reduction Act�) to lower the federal budget deficit.  The Deficit Reduction Act includes estimated net savings of $8.3 billion from the
Medicare program over 5 years.

The Deficit Reduction Act contained a provision reducing payments to SNFs for allowable bad debts.  Previously, Medicare reimbursed SNFs
for 100% of beneficiary bad debt arising from unpaid deductibles and coinsurance amounts.  In 2003, CMS released a proposed rule seeking to
reduce bad debt reimbursement rates for certain providers, including SNFs, by 30% over a three-year period.  CMS never finalized its 2003
proposal.  The Deficit Reduction Act reduced payments to SNFs for allowable bad debts by 30% effective October 1, 2005 for those individuals
not dually eligible for Medicare and Medicaid.  Bad debt payments for the dually eligible population will remain at 100%.  These reductions in
Medicare payments for bad debt could have a material adverse effect on our operators� financial condition and operations, which could adversely
affect their ability to meet their payment obligations to us.

The Deficit Reduction Act also contained a provision governing the therapy caps that went into place under Medicare on January 1, 2006.  The
therapy caps limit the physical therapy, speech-language therapy and occupation therapy services that a Medicare beneficiary can receive during
a calendar year.  The therapy caps were in effect for calendar year 1999 and then suspended by Congress for three years.  An inflation-adjusted
therapy limit ($1,590 per year) was implemented in September of 2002, but then once again suspended in December of 2003 by the Medicare
Modernization Act.  Under the Medicare Modernization Act, Congress placed a two-year moratorium on implementation of the caps, which
expired at the end of 2005.

The inflation-adjusted therapy caps are set at $1,740 for 2006.  These caps do not apply to therapy services covered under Medicare Part A in a
SNF, although the caps apply in most other instances involving patients in SNFs or long-term care facilities who receive therapy services
covered under
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Medicare Part B.  The Deficit Reduction Act permitted exceptions in 2006 for therapy services to exceed the caps when the therapy services are
deemed medically necessary by the Medicare program.  The implementation of the therapy caps could have a material adverse effect on our
operators� financial condition and operations, which could adversely affect their ability to meet their payment obligations to us.

In general, we cannot be assured that federal reimbursement will remain at levels comparable to present levels or that such reimbursement will
be sufficient for our lessees or mortgagors to cover all operating and fixed costs necessary to care for Medicare and Medicaid patients.  We also
cannot be assured that there will be any future legislation to increase Medicare payment rates for SNFs, and if such payment rates for SNFs are
not increased in the future, some of our lessees and mortgagors may have difficulty meeting their payment obligations to us.

Medicaid and Other Third-Party Reimbursement

Each state has its own Medicaid program that is funded jointly by the state and federal government.  Federal law governs how each state
manages its Medicaid program, but there is wide latitude for states to customize Medicaid programs to fit the needs and resources of their
citizens.  Currently, Medicaid is the single largest source of financing for long-term care in the United States.  Rising Medicaid costs and
decreasing state revenues caused by recent economic conditions have prompted an increasing number of states to cut or consider reductions in
Medicaid funding as a means of balancing their respective state budgets.  Existing and future initiatives affecting Medicaid reimbursement may
reduce utilization of (and reimbursement for) services offered by the operators of our properties.

In recent years, many states have announced actual or potential budget shortfalls, and many budget forecasts in 2006 could be similar.  As a
result of these budget shortfalls, many states have announced that they are implementing or considering implementing �freezes� or cuts in
Medicaid reimbursement rates, including rates paid to SNF and long-term care providers, or reductions in Medicaid enrollee benefits, including
long-term care benefits.  We cannot predict the extent to which Medicaid rate freezes, cuts or benefit reductions ultimately will be adopted, the
number of states that will adopt them or the impact of such adoption on our operators.  However, extensive Medicaid rate cuts, freezes or benefit
reductions could have a material adverse effect on our operators� liquidity, financial condition and operations, which could adversely affect their
ability to make lease or mortgage payments to us.

The Deficit Reduction Act included $4.7 billion in estimated savings from Medicaid and the State Children�s Health Insurance Program over five
years.  The Deficit Reduction Act gives states the option to increase Medicaid cost-sharing and reduce Medicaid benefits, accounting for an
estimated $3.2 billion in federal savings over five years.  The remainder of the Medicaid savings under the Deficit Reduction Act comes
primarily from changes to prescription drug reimbursement ($3.9 billion in savings over five years) and tightened policies governing asset
transfers ($2.4 billion in savings over five years).

Asset transfer policies, which determine Medicaid eligibility based on whether a Medicaid applicant has transferred assets for less than fair
value, are more restrictive under the Deficit Reduction Act, which extends the look-back period to five years, moves the start of the penalty
period and makes individuals with more than $500,000 in home equity ineligible for nursing home benefits (previously, the home was excluded
as a countable asset for purposes of Medicaid eligibility).  These changes could have a material adverse effect on our operators� financial
condition and operations, which could adversely affect their ability to meet their payment obligations to us.

Additional reductions in federal funding are expected for some state Medicaid programs as a result of changes in the percentage rates used for
determining federal assistance on a state-by-state basis.  Legislation has been introduced in Congress that would partially mitigate the reductions
for some states that would experience significant reductions in federal funding, although whether Congress will enact this or other legislation
remains uncertain.
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Finally, private payors, including managed care payors, increasingly are demanding discounted fee structures and the assumption by healthcare
providers of all or a portion of the financial risk of operating a healthcare facility.  Efforts to impose greater discounts and more stringent cost
controls are expected to continue.  Any changes in reimbursement policies that reduce reimbursement levels could adversely affect the revenues
of our lessees and mortgagors, thereby adversely affecting those lessees� and mortgagors� abilities to make their monthly lease or debt payments
to us.

Fraud and Abuse Laws and Regulations

There are various extremely complex and largely uninterpreted federal and state laws governing a wide array of referrals, relationships and
arrangements and prohibiting fraud by healthcare providers, including criminal provisions that prohibit filing false claims or making false
statements to receive payment or certification under Medicare and Medicaid, and failing to refund overpayments or improper payments.  The
federal and state governments are devoting increasing attention and resources to anti-fraud initiatives against healthcare providers.  Penalties for
healthcare fraud have been increased and expanded over recent years, including broader provisions for the exclusion of providers from the
Medicare and Medicaid programs.  The Office of the Inspector General for the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, in cooperation
with other federal and state agencies, continues to focus on the activities of SNFs in certain states in which we have properties.

In addition, the federal False Claims Act allows a private individual with knowledge of fraud to bring a claim on behalf of the federal
government and earn a percentage of the federal government�s recovery.  Because of these monetary incentives, these so-called ��whistleblower��
suits have become more frequent.  Some states currently have statutes that are analogous to the federal False Claims Act.  The Deficit Reduction
Act encourages additional states to enact such legislation and may encourage increased enforcement activity by permitting states to retain 10%
of any recovery for that state�s Medicaid program if the enacted legislation is at least as rigorous as the federal False Claims Act.  The violation
of any of these laws or regulations by an operator may result in the imposition of fines or other penalties that could jeopardize that operator�s
ability to make lease or mortgage payments to us or to continue operating its facility.

Legislative and Regulatory Developments

Each year, legislative and regulatory proposals are introduced or proposed in Congress and state legislatures as well as by federal and state
agencies that, if implemented, could result in major changes in the healthcare system, either nationally or at the state level. In addition,
regulatory proposals and rules are released on an ongoing basis that may have major impacts on the healthcare system generally and the
industries in which our operators do business. Legislative and regulatory developments can be expected to occur on an ongoing basis at the local,
state and federal levels that have direct or indirect impacts on the policies governing the reimbursement levels paid to our facilities by public and
private third-party payors, the costs of doing business and the threshold requirements that must be met for facilities to continue operation or to
expand.

The Medicare Modernization Act, which is one example of such legislation, was enacted in December 2003. The significant expansion of other
benefits for Medicare beneficiaries under this Act, such as the prescription drug benefit, could create financial pressures on the Medicare
program that might result in future legislative and regulatory changes with impacts on our operators. Although the creation of a prescription drug
benefit for Medicare beneficiaries was expected to generate fiscal relief for state Medicaid programs, the structure of the benefit and costs
associated with its implementation may mitigate the relief for states that originally was anticipated.
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The Deficit Reduction Act is another example of such legislation.  The provisions in the legislation designed to create cost savings from both
Medicare and Medicaid could diminish reimbursement for our operators under both Medicare and Medicaid.

CMS also launched the Nursing Home Quality Initiative program in 2002, which requires nursing homes participating in Medicare to provide
consumers with comparative information about the quality of care at the facility.  CMS plans to initiate a new Nursing Home Quality campaign
this fall to be conducted over the next two years with the ultimate goal being improvement in quality of life and efficiency of care delivery.  In
the event any of our operators do not maintain the same or superior levels of quality care as their competitors, patients could choose alternate
facilities, which could adversely impact our operators� revenues.  In addition, the reporting of such information could lead in the future to
reimbursement policies that reward or penalize facilities on the basis of the reported quality of care parameters.

In late 2005, CMS began soliciting public comments regarding a demonstration to examine pay-for-performance approaches in the nursing home
setting that would offer financial incentives for facilities to deliver high quality care.  In June 2006, Abt Associates published recommendations
for CMS on how to design this demonstration project.  The proposed three-year demonstration could begin as early as late 2006 or early 2007,
with CMS inviting state agencies to participate in the project.  Other proposals under consideration include efforts by individual states to control
costs by decreasing state Medicaid reimbursements in the current or future fiscal years and federal legislation addressing various issues, such as
improving quality of care and reducing medical errors throughout the health care industry. We cannot accurately predict whether specific
proposals will be adopted or, if adopted, what effect, if any, these proposals would have on operators and, thus, our business.

Taxation

The following is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to us and to the holders of our securities
and our election to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (�REIT�).  It is not tax advice.  The summary is not intended to represent a detailed
description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to a particular stockholder in view of any person�s particular circumstances,
nor is it intended to represent a detailed description of the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to stockholders subject to special
treatment under the federal income tax laws such as insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, securities
broker-dealers, investors in pass-through entities, expatriates and taxpayers subject to alternative minimum taxation.

The following discussion, to the extent it constitutes matters of law or legal conclusions (assuming the facts, representations, and assumptions
upon which the discussion is based are accurate), accurately represents some of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations relevant to
our securities.  The sections of the Internal Revenue Code (the �Code�) relating to the qualification and operation as a REIT are highly technical
and complex.  The following discussion sets forth the material aspects of the Code sections that govern the federal income tax treatment of a
REIT and its stockholders.  The information in this section is based on the Code; current, temporary, and proposed Treasury regulations
promulgated under the Code; the legislative history of the Code; current administrative interpretations and practices of the Internal Revenue
Service (�IRS�); and court decisions, in each case, as of the date of this report.  In addition, the administrative interpretations and practices of the
IRS include its practices and policies as expressed in private letter rulings, which are not binding on the IRS, except with respect to the particular
taxpayers who requested and received those rulings.

Taxation of Omega

General.  We have elected to be taxed as a REIT, under Sections 856 through 860 of the Code, beginning with our
taxable year ended December 31, 1992.  Except with respect to the Advocat Inc. (�Advocat�) �related party tenant� issue
described elsewhere in this report, we believe that we have been organized and operated in such a manner as to qualify
for taxation as a REIT under the Code and we
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intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no assurance can be given that we have operated or will be able to continue to operate in a
manner so as to qualify or remain qualified as a REIT.

The sections of the Code that govern the federal income tax treatment of a REIT are highly technical and complex.  The following sets forth the
material aspects of those sections.  This summary is qualified in its entirety by the applicable Code provisions, rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof.

If we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to federal corporate income taxes on our net income that is currently
distributed to stockholders.  However, we will be subject to federal income tax as follows: First, we will be taxed at regular corporate rates on
any undistributed REIT taxable income, including undistributed net capital gains; provided, however, that if we have a net capital gain, we will
be taxed at regular corporate rates on our undistributed REIT taxable income, computed without regard to net capital gain and the deduction for
capital gains dividends, plus a 35% tax on undistributed net capital gain, if our tax as thus computed is less than the tax computed in the regular
manner.  Second, under certain circumstances, we may be subject to the �alternative minimum tax� on our items of tax preference that we do not
distribute or allocate to our stockholders.  Third, if we have (i) net income from the sale or other disposition of �foreclosure property,� which is
held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business, or (ii) other nonqualifying income from foreclosure property, we will be
subject to tax at the highest regular corporate rate on such income.  Fourth, if we have net income from prohibited transactions (which are, in
general, certain sales or other dispositions of property (other than foreclosure property) held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary
course of business by us, (i.e., when we are acting as a dealer)), such income will be subject to a 100% tax.  Fifth, if we should fail to satisfy the
75% gross income test or the 95% gross income test (as discussed below), but have nonetheless maintained our qualification as a REIT because
certain other requirements have been met, we will be subject to a 100% tax on an amount equal to (a) the gross income attributable to the greater
of the amount by which we fail the 75% or 95% test, multiplied by (b) a fraction intended to reflect our profitability.  Sixth, if we should fail to
distribute by the end of each year at least the sum of (i) 85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year, (ii) 95% of our REIT capital gain net
income for such year, and (iii) any undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we will be subject to a 4% excise tax on the excess of such
required distribution over the amounts actually distributed.  Seventh, we will be subject to a 100% excise tax on transactions with a taxable
REIT subsidiary, or TRS, that are not conducted on an arm�s-length basis.  Eighth, if we acquire any asset, which is defined as a �built-in gain
asset� from a C corporation that is not a REIT (i.e., generally a corporation subject to full corporate-level tax) in a transaction in which the basis
of the built-in gain asset in our hands is determined by reference to the basis of the asset (or any other property) in the hands of the C
corporation, and we recognize gain on the disposition of such asset during the 10-year period, which is defined as the �recognition period,�
beginning on the date on which such asset was acquired by us, then, to the extent of the built-in gain (i.e., the excess of (a) the fair market value
of such asset on the date such asset was acquired by us over (b) our adjusted basis in such asset on such date), our recognized gain will be
subject to tax at the highest regular corporate rate.  The results described above with respect to the recognition of built-in gain assume that we
will not make an election pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.337(d)-7(c)(5).

Requirements for qualification. The Code defines a REIT as a corporation, trust or association: (1) which is managed by
one or more trustees or directors; (2) the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced by transferable shares, or by
transferable certificates of beneficial interest; (3) which would be taxable as a domestic corporation, but for Sections
856 through 859 of the Code; (4) which is neither a financial institution nor an insurance company subject to the
provisions of the Code; (5) the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more persons; (6) during the last half
year of each taxable year not more than 50% in value of the outstanding stock of which is owned, actually or
constructively, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities); and (7) which meets
certain other tests, described below, regarding the nature of its income and assets and the amount of its annual
distributions to stockholders.  The Code provides that conditions (1) to (4), inclusive, must be met during the entire
taxable year and that condition (5) must be met during at least 335 days of a taxable year of twelve months, or during
a proportionate part of a taxable year of less than twelve months.  For purposes
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of conditions (5) and (6), pension funds and certain other tax-exempt entities are treated as individuals, subject to a �look-through� exception in the
case of condition (6).

Income tests.  In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we annually must satisfy two gross income
requirements.  First, at least 75% of our gross income (excluding gross income from prohibited transactions) for each
taxable year must be derived directly or indirectly from investments relating to real property or mortgages on real
property (including generally �rents from real property,� interest on mortgages on real property and gains on sale of real
property and real property mortgages, other than property described in Section 1221 of the Code) and income derived
from certain types of temporary investments.  Second, at least 95% of our gross income (excluding gross income from
prohibited transactions) for each taxable year must be derived from such real property investments, dividends, interest
and gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities other than property held for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of business.

Rents received by us will qualify as �rents from real property� in satisfying the gross income requirements for a REIT described above only if
several conditions are met.  First, the amount of the rent must not be based in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person.  However,
any amount received or accrued generally will not be excluded from the term �rents from real property� solely by reason of being based on a fixed
percentage or percentages of receipts or sales.  Second, the Code provides that rents received from a tenant will not qualify as �rents from real
property� in satisfying the gross income tests if we, or an owner (actually or constructively) of 10% or more of the value of our stock, actually or
constructively owns 10% or more of such tenant, which is defined as a related party tenant.  Third, if rent attributable to personal property,
leased in connection with a lease of real property, is greater than 15% of the total rent received under the lease, then the portion of rent
attributable to such personal property will not qualify as �rents from real property.� Finally, for rents received to qualify as �rents from real
property,� we generally must not operate or manage the property or furnish or render services to the tenants of such property, other than through
an independent contractor from which we derive no revenue.  We, however, directly perform certain services that are �usually or customarily
rendered� in connection with the rental of space for occupancy only and are not otherwise considered �rendered to the occupant� of the property.  In
addition, we may provide a minimal amount of �non-customary� services to the tenants of a property, other than through an independent
contractor, as long as our income from the services does not exceed 1% of our income from the related property.  Furthermore, we may own up
to 100% of the stock of a taxable REIT subsidiary (�TRS�), which may provide customary and non-customary services to our tenants without
tainting our rental income from the related properties.  For our tax years beginning after 2004, rents for customary services performed by a TRS
or that are received from a TRS and are described in Code Section 512(b)(3) no longer meet the 100% excise tax safe harbor.  Instead, such
payments avoid the excise tax if we pay the TRS at least 150% of its direct cost of furnishing such services.

The term �interest� generally does not include any amount received or accrued (directly or indirectly) if the determination of such amount depends
in whole or in part on the income or profits of any person.  However, an amount received or accrued generally will not be excluded from the
term �interest� solely by reason of being based on a fixed percentage or percentages of gross receipts or sales.  In addition, an amount that is based
on the income or profits of a debtor will be qualifying interest income as long as the debtor derives substantially all of its income from the real
property securing the debt from leasing substantially all of its interest in the property, but only to the extent that the amounts received by the
debtor would be qualifying �rents from real property� if received directly by a REIT.

If a loan contains a provision that entitles us to a percentage of the borrower�s gain upon the sale of the real property securing the loan or a
percentage of the appreciation in the property�s value as of a specific date, income attributable to that loan provision will be treated as gain from
the sale of the property securing the loan, which generally is qualifying income for purposes of both gross income tests.

Interest on debt secured by mortgages on real property or on interests in real property generally is qualifying income for purposes of the 75%
gross income test.  However, if the highest principal amount
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of a loan outstanding during a taxable year exceeds the fair market value of the real property securing the loan as of the date we agreed to
originate or acquire the loan, a portion of the interest income from such loan will not be qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income
test, but will be qualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross income test.  The portion of the interest income that will not be qualifying
income for purposes of the 75% gross income test will be equal to the portion of the principal amount of the loan that is not secured by real
property.

Prohibited transactions.  We will incur a 100% tax on the net income derived from any sale or other disposition of
property, other than foreclosure property, that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade
or business.  We believe that none of our assets is primarily held for sale to customers and that a sale of any of our
assets would not be in the ordinary course of our business.  Whether a REIT holds an asset primarily for sale to
customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business depends, however, on the facts and circumstances in effect
from time to time, including those related to a particular asset.  Nevertheless, we will attempt to comply with the terms
of safe-harbor provisions in the federal income tax laws prescribing when an asset sale will not be characterized as a
prohibited transaction.  We cannot assure you, however, that we can comply with the safe-harbor provisions or that we
will avoid owning property that may be characterized as property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the
ordinary course of a trade or business.

Foreclosure property.  We will be subject to tax at the maximum corporate rate on any income from foreclosure property,
other than income that otherwise would be qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test, less expenses
directly connected with the production of that income.  However, gross income from foreclosure property will qualify
for purposes of the 75% and 95% gross income tests.  Foreclosure property is any real property, including interests in
real property, and any personal property incident to such real property:

•  that is acquired by a REIT as the result of the REIT having bid on such property at foreclosure, or
having otherwise reduced such property to ownership or possession by agreement or process of law, after there was a
default or default was imminent on a lease of such property or on indebtedness that such property secured;

•  for which the related loan or lease was acquired by the REIT at a time when the default was not
imminent or anticipated; and

•  for which the REIT makes a proper election to treat the property as foreclosure property.

Property generally ceases to be foreclosure property at the end of the third taxable year following the taxable year in which the REIT acquired
the property, or longer if an extension is granted by the Secretary of the Treasury.  This grace period terminates and foreclosure property ceases
to be foreclosure property on the first day:

•  on which a lease is entered into for the property that, by its terms, will give rise to income that
does not qualify for purposes of the 75% gross income test, or any amount is received or accrued, directly or
indirectly, pursuant to a lease entered into on or after such day that will give rise to income that does not qualify for
purposes of the 75% gross income test;

•  on which any construction takes place on the property, other than completion of a building or any
other improvement, where more than 10% of the construction was completed before default became imminent; or

•  which is more than 90 days after the day on which the REIT acquired the property and the
property is used in a trade or business which is conducted by the REIT, other than through an independent contractor
from whom the REIT itself does not derive or receive any income.
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After the year 2000, the definition of foreclosure property was amended to include any �qualified health care property,� as defined in Code Section
856(e)(6) acquired by us as the result of the termination or expiration of a lease of such property.  We have operated qualified healthcare
facilities acquired in this manner for up to two years (or longer if an extension was granted).  However, we do not currently own any property
with respect to which we have made foreclosure property elections.  Properties that we had taken back in a foreclosure or bankruptcy and
operated for our own account were treated as foreclosure properties for income tax purposes, pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 856(e). 
Gross income from foreclosure properties was classified as �good income� for purposes of the annual REIT income tests upon making the election
on the tax return.  Once made, the income was classified as �good� for a period of three years, or until the properties were no longer operated for
our own account.  In all cases of foreclosure property, we utilized an independent contractor to conduct day-to-day operations in order to
maintain REIT status.  In certain cases we operated these facilities through a taxable REIT subsidiary.  For those properties operated through the
taxable REIT subsidiary, we utilized an eligible independent contractor to conduct day-to-day operations to maintain REIT status.  As a result of
the foregoing, we do not believe that our participation in the operation of nursing homes increased the risk that we will fail to qualify as a REIT. 
Through our 2005 taxable year, we had not paid any tax on our foreclosure property because those properties had been producing losses.  We
cannot predict whether, in the future, our income from foreclosure property will be significant and/or whether we could be required to pay a
significant amount of tax on that income.

Hedging transactions.  From time to time, we enter into hedging transactions with respect to one or more of our assets or
liabilities.  Our hedging activities may include entering into interest rate swaps, caps, and floors, options to purchase
these items, and futures and forward contracts.  To the extent that we enter into an interest rate swap or cap contract,
option, futures contract, forward rate agreement, or any similar financial instrument to hedge our indebtedness
incurred to acquire or carry �real estate assets,� any periodic income or gain from the disposition of that contract should
be qualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross income test, but not the 75% gross income test.  Accordingly, our
income and gain from our interest rate swap agreements generally is qualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross
income test, but not the 75% gross income test.  To the extent that we hedge with other types of financial instruments,
or in other situations, it is not entirely clear how the income from those transactions will be treated for purposes of the
gross income tests.  We have structured and intend to continue to structure any hedging transactions in a manner that
does not jeopardize our status as a REIT.  For tax years beginning after 2004, we will no longer include income from
hedging transactions in gross income (i.e., not included in either the numerator or the denominator) for purposes of the
95% gross income test.

TRS income.  A TRS may earn income that would not be qualifying income if earned directly by the parent REIT.  Both
the subsidiary and the REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a TRS.  A corporation of which a TRS directly
or indirectly owns more than 35% of the voting power or value of the stock will automatically be treated as a TRS. 
Overall, no more than 20% of the value of a REIT�s assets may consist of securities of one or more TRSs.  However, a
TRS does not include a corporation which directly or indirectly (i) operates or manages a health care (or lodging)
facility, or (ii) provides to any other person (under a franchise, license, or otherwise) rights to any brand name under
which a health care (or lodging) facility is operated.  A TRS will pay income tax at regular corporate rates on any
income that it earns.  In addition, the new rules limit the deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parent
REIT to assure that the TRS is subject to an appropriate level of corporate taxation.  The rules also impose a 100%
excise tax on transactions between a TRS and its parent REIT or the REIT�s tenants that are not conducted on an
arm�s-length basis.  We have made a TRS election with respect to Bayside Street II, Inc.  That entity will pay corporate
income tax on its taxable income and its after-tax net income will be available for distribution to us.

Failure to satisfy income tests.  If we fail to satisfy one or both of the 75% or 95% gross income tests for any taxable year,
we may nevertheless qualify as a REIT for such year if we are entitled to relief under certain provisions of the Code. 
These relief provisions will be generally available if our failure to meet such tests was due to reasonable cause and not
due to willful neglect, we attach a schedule of the sources of our income to our tax return, and any incorrect
information on the schedule was not due to
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fraud with intent to evade tax.  It is not possible, however, to state whether in all circumstances we would be entitled to the benefit of these relief
provisions.  Even if these relief provisions apply, we would incur a 100% tax on the gross income attributable to the greater of the amounts by
which we fail the 75% and 95% gross income tests, multiplied by a fraction intended to reflect our profitability and we would file a schedule
with descriptions of each item of gross income that caused the failure.

Asset tests.  At the close of each quarter of our taxable year, we must also satisfy the following tests relating to the
nature of our assets.  First, at least 75% of the value of our total assets must be represented by real estate assets
(including (i) our allocable share of real estate assets held by partnerships in which we own an interest and (ii) stock or
debt instruments held for not more than one year purchased with the proceeds of a stock offering or long-term (at least
five years) debt offering of our company), cash, cash items and government securities.  Second, of our investments not
included in the 75% asset class, the value of our interest in any one issuer�s securities may not exceed 5% of the value
of our total assets.  Third, we may not own more than 10% of the voting power or value of any one issuer�s outstanding
securities.  Fourth, no more than 20% of the value of our total assets may consist of the securities of one or more
TRSs.  Fifth, no more than 25% of the value of our total assets may consist of the securities of TRSs and other
non-TRS taxable subsidiaries and other assets that are not qualifying assets for purposes of the 75% asset test.

For purposes of the second and third asset tests the term �securities� does not include our equity or debt securities of a qualified REIT subsidiary
or TRS or our equity interest in any partnership, since we are deemed to own our proportionate share of each asset of any partnership of which
we are a partner.  Furthermore, for purposes of determining whether we own more than 10% of the value of only one issuer�s outstanding
securities, the term �securities� does not include: (i) any loan to an individual or an estate; (ii) any Code Section 467 rental agreement; (iii) any
obligation to pay rents from real property; (iv) certain government issued securities; (v) any security issued by another REIT; and (vi) our debt
securities in any partnership, not otherwise excepted under (i) through (v) above, (A) to the extent of our interest as a partner in the partnership
or (B) if 75% of the partnership�s gross income is derived from sources described in the 75% income test set forth above.

We may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more TRSs.  However, overall, no more than 20% of the value of our assets may consist of
securities of one or more TRSs, and no more than 25% of the value of our assets may consist of the securities of TRSs and other non-TRS
taxable subsidiaries (including stock in non-REIT C corporations) and other assets that are not qualifying assets for purposes of the 75% asset
test.  If the outstanding principal balance of a mortgage loan exceeds the fair market value of the real property securing the loan, a portion of
such loan likely will not be a qualifying real estate asset under the federal income tax laws.  The nonqualifying portion of that mortgage loan will
be equal to the portion of the loan amount that exceeds the value of the associated real property.

After initially meeting the asset tests at the close of any quarter, we will not lose our status as a REIT for failure to satisfy any of the asset tests at
the end of a later quarter solely by reason of changes in asset values.  If the failure to satisfy the asset tests results from an acquisition of
securities or other property during a quarter, the failure can be cured by disposition of sufficient nonqualifying assets within 30 days after the
close of that quarter.

For our tax years beginning after 2004, subject to certain de minimis exceptions, we may avoid REIT disqualification in the event of certain
failures under the asset tests, provided that (i) we file a schedule with a description of each asset that caused the failure, (ii) the failure was due to
reasonable cause and not willful neglect, (iii) we dispose of the assets within 6 months after the last day of the quarter in which the identification
of the failure occurred (or the requirements of the rules are otherwise met within such period), and (iv) we pay a tax on the failure equal to the
greater of (A) $50,000 per failure, and (B) the product of the net income generated by the assets that caused the failure for the period beginning
on the date of the failure and ending on the date we dispose of the asset (or otherwise satisfy the requirements) multiplied by the highest
applicable corporate tax rate.
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Annual distribution requirements.  In order to qualify as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends (other than capital
gain dividends) to our stockholders in an amount at least equal to (A) the sum of (i) 90% of our �REIT taxable income�
(computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain) and (ii) 90% of the net income
(after tax), if any, from foreclosure property, minus (B) the sum of certain items of noncash income.  Such
distributions must be paid in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if declared before
we timely file our tax return for such year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such
declaration.  In addition, such distributions are required to be made pro rata, with no preference to any share of stock
as compared with other shares of the same class, and with no preference to one class of stock as compared with
another class except to the extent that such class is entitled to such a preference.  To the extent that we do not
distribute all of our net capital gain or do distribute at least 90%, but less than 100% of our �REIT taxable income,� as
adjusted, we will be subject to tax thereon at regular ordinary and capital gain corporate tax rates.

Furthermore, if we fail to distribute during a calendar year, or by the end of January following the calendar year in the case of distributions with
declaration and record dates falling in the last three months of the calendar year, at least the sum of:

•              85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year;

•              95% of our REIT capital gain income for such year; and

•              any undistributed taxable income from prior periods,

we will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax on the excess of such required distribution over the amounts we actually distribute.  We may elect
to retain and pay income tax on the net long-term capital gain we receive in a taxable year.  If we so elect, we will be treated as having
distributed any such retained amount for purposes of the 4% excise tax described above.  We have made, and we intend to continue to make,
timely distributions sufficient to satisfy the annual distribution requirements.  We may also be entitled to pay and deduct deficiency dividends in
later years as a relief measure to correct errors in determining our taxable income.  Although we may be able to avoid income tax on amounts
distributed as deficiency dividends, we will be required to pay interest to the IRS based upon the amount of any deduction we take for deficiency
dividends.

The availability to us of, among other things, depreciation deductions with respect to our owned facilities depends upon the treatment by us as
the owner of such facilities for federal income tax purposes, and the classification of the leases with respect to such facilities as �true leases� rather
than financing arrangements for federal income tax purposes.  The questions of whether we are the owner of such facilities and whether the
leases are true leases for federal tax purposes are essentially factual matters.  We believe that we will be treated as the owner of each of the
facilities that we lease, and such leases will be treated as true leases for federal income tax purposes.  However, no assurances can be given that
the IRS will not successfully challenge our status as the owner of our facilities subject to leases, and the status of such leases as true leases,
asserting that the purchase of the facilities by us and the leasing of such facilities merely constitute steps in secured financing transactions in
which the lessees are owners of the facilities and we are merely a secured creditor.  In such event, we would not be entitled to claim depreciation
deductions with respect to any of the affected facilities.  As a result, we might fail to meet the 90% distribution requirement or, if such
requirement is met, we might be subject to corporate income tax or the 4% excise tax.

Other Failures.  We may avoid disqualification in the event of a failure to meet certain requirements for REIT
qualification, other than the 95% and 75% gross income tests, the rules with respect to ownership of securities of more
than 10% of a single issuer, and the new rules provided for failures of the asset tests, if the failures are due to
reasonable cause and not willful neglect, and if the REIT pays a penalty of $50,000 for each such failure.
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Failure to Qualify

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, and the relief provisions do not apply, we will be subject to tax (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corporate rates.  Distributions to stockholders in any year in which we fail to qualify
will not be deductible and our failure to qualify as a REIT would reduce the cash available for distribution by us to our stockholders.  In
addition, if we fail to qualify as a REIT, all distributions to stockholders will be taxable as ordinary income, to the extent of current and
accumulated earnings and profits, and, subject to certain limitations of the Code, corporate distributees may be eligible for the dividends
received deduction.  Unless entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we would also be disqualified from taxation as a REIT for the
four taxable years following the year during which qualification was lost.  It is not possible to state whether in all circumstances we would be
entitled to such statutory relief.  Failure to qualify could result in our incurring indebtedness or liquidating investments in order to pay the
resulting taxes.

Other Tax Matters

We own and operate a number of properties through qualified REIT subsidiaries, (�QRSs�).  The QRSs are treated as qualified REIT subsidiaries
under the Code.  Code Section 856(i) provides that a corporation which is a qualified REIT subsidiary shall not be treated as a separate
corporation, and all assets, liabilities, and items of income, deduction, and credit of a qualified REIT subsidiary shall be treated as assets,
liabilities and such items (as the case may be) of the REIT.  Thus, in applying the tests for REIT qualification described in this prospectus under
the heading �Taxation of Omega,� the QRSs will be ignored, and all assets, liabilities and items of income, deduction, and credit of such QRSs
will be treated as our assets, liabilities and items of income, deduction, and credit.

In the case of a REIT that is a partner in a partnership, the REIT is treated as owning its proportionate share of the assets of the partnership and
as earning its allocable share of the gross income of the partnership for purposes of the applicable REIT qualification tests.  Thus, our
proportionate share of the assets, liabilities, and items of income of any partnership, joint venture, or limited liability company that is treated as a
partnership for federal income tax purposes in which we own an interest, directly or indirectly, will be treated as our assets and gross income for
purposes of applying the various REIT qualification requirements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�GAAP�) and
a summary of our significant accounting policies is included in Note 2 to our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31,
2005.  Our preparation of the financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period.

We have identified five significant accounting policies that we believe are critical accounting policies.  These critical accounting policies are
those that have the most impact on the reporting of our financial condition and those requiring significant assumptions, judgments and
estimates.  With respect to these critical accounting policies, we believe the application of judgments and assessments is consistently applied and
produces financial information that fairly presents the results of operations for all periods presented.  The five critical accounting policies are:
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Revenue Recognition

With the exception of certain master leases, rental income and mortgage interest income are recognized as earned over the terms of the related
master leases and mortgage notes, respectively.  Substantially all of our leases contain provisions for specified annual increases
over the rents of the prior year and are generally computed in one of three methods depending on specific provisions
of each lease as follows: (i) a specific annual increase over the prior year�s rent, generally 2.5%; (ii) an increase based
on the change in pre-determined formulas from year to year (i.e., such as increases in the CPI); or (iii) specific dollar
increases over prior years.  Revenue under lease arrangements with specific determinable increases is recognized over
the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.  SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 �Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements� (�SAB 101�) does not provide for the recognition of contingent revenue until all possible
contingencies have been eliminated.  We consider the operating history of the lessee, the general condition of the
industry and various other factors when evaluating whether all possible contingencies have been eliminated.  We have
historically not included, and generally expect in the future not to include, contingent rents as income until received. 
We follow a policy related to rental income whereby we typically consider a lease to be non-performing after 90 days
of non-payment of past due amounts and do not recognize unpaid rental income from that lease until the amounts have
been received.

In the case of rental revenue recognized on a straight-line basis, we will generally discontinue recording rent on a straight-line
basis if the lessee becomes delinquent in rent owed under the terms of the lease.  Reserves are taken against earned
revenues from leases when collection becomes questionable or when negotiations for restructurings of troubled
operators result in significant uncertainty regarding ultimate collection.  The amount of the reserve is estimated based
on what management believes will likely be collected.  Once the recording of straight-line rent is suspended, we will
evaluate the collectibility of the related straight-line rent asset.  If it is determined that the delinquency is temporary,
we will resume booking rent on a straight-line basis once payment is received for past due rents, after taking into
account application of security deposits.  If it appears that we will not collect future rent due under our leases, we will
record a provision for loss related to the straight-line rent asset.

Recognizing rental income on a straight-line basis results in recognized revenue exceeding contractual amounts due from our tenants.  Such
cumulative excess amounts are included in accounts receivable and were $16.7 million and $13.8 million, net of allowances, at June 30, 2006
and December 31, 2005, respectively.  See Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements.

Gains on sales of real estate assets are recognized pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.  The specific
timing of the recognition of the sale and the related gain is measured against the various criteria in SFAS No. 66 related to the terms of the
transactions and any continuing involvement associated with the assets sold.  To the extent the sales criteria are not met, we defer gain
recognition until the sales criteria are met.

Depreciation and Asset Impairment

Under GAAP, real estate assets are stated at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value, if deemed impaired.  Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 20 to 40 years for buildings and improvements and three to ten years for furniture, fixtures
and equipment.  Management periodically, but not less than annually, evaluates our real estate investments for impairment
indicators, including the evaluation of our assets� useful lives.  The judgment regarding the existence of impairment
indicators is based on factors such as, but not limited to, market conditions, operator performance and legal structure. 
If indicators of impairment are present, management evaluates the carrying value of the related real estate investments
in relation to the future undiscounted cash flows of the underlying facilities.  Provisions for impairment losses related
to long-lived assets are recognized when expected future undiscounted cash flows are determined to be permanently
less than the carrying values of the assets.  An adjustment is made to the net carrying value of the leased properties
and other long-lived assets for the excess of historical cost over fair value.  The fair value of the real estate investment
is determined by market
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research, which includes valuing the property as a nursing home as well as other alternative uses.  All impairments are taken as a period cost at
that time, and depreciation is adjusted going forward to reflect the new value assigned to the asset.

If we decide to sell rental properties or land holdings, we evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amounts of the assets.  If the evaluation
indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable from estimated net sales proceeds, the property is written down to estimated fair value less
costs to sell.  Our estimates of cash flows and fair values of the properties are based on current market conditions and consider matters such as
rental rates and occupancies for comparable properties, recent sales data for comparable properties, and, where applicable, contracts or the
results of negotiations with purchasers or prospective purchasers.

During the six months ended June 30, 2006, we recognized an impairment loss associated with one facility of approximately $0.1 million.

Loan Impairment

Management, periodically but not less than annually, evaluates our outstanding loans and notes receivable.  When management identifies
potential loan impairment indicators, such as non-payment under the loan documents, impairment of the underlying collateral, financial
difficulty of the operator or other circumstances that may impair full execution of the loan documents, and management believes these indicators
are permanent, then the loan is written down to the present value of the expected future cash flows.  In cases where expected future cash flows
cannot be estimated, the loan is written down to the fair value of the collateral.  The fair value of the loan is determined by market research,
which includes valuing the property as a nursing home as well as other alternative uses.

In accordance with FASB Statement No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan and FASB Statement No. 118, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan � Income Recognition and Disclosures, we currently account for impaired loans using the cost-recovery
method applying cash received against the outstanding principal balance prior to recording interest income (see Note 8 � Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities).

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the operating results of specified
real estate assets that have been sold, or otherwise qualify as held for disposition (as defined by SFAS No. 144), are reflected as discontinued
operations in the consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, or FIN 46R, addresses the
consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities (�VIEs�).  FIN 46R provides criteria that, if met, would
create a VIE, which would then be subject to consolidation.  If an entity is determined to be a VIE, the party deemed
to be the primary beneficiary is required to consolidate the VIE.  The primary beneficiary is the party that has the most
variability in expected gains or losses of the VIE.

In order to determine which party is the primary beneficiary, we must calculate the expected losses and expected residual returns of the VIE. 
The analysis requires a projection of expected cash flows and the assignment of probabilities to each possible cash flow outcome.  Estimating
expected cash flows and assigning probabilities of each outcome of the VIE requires us to use significant judgment.  If assumptions used to
estimate the expected cash flows prove to be inaccurate, our conclusions regarding which party is the VIE�s primary beneficiary could be
incorrect, resulting in us improperly consolidating the VIE when we are not the primary beneficiary or not consolidating the VIE when we are
the primary beneficiary.
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Results of Operations

The following is our discussion of the consolidated results of operations, financial position and liquidity and capital resources, which should be
read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.

Our Board of Directors, including our Audit Committee, concluded on October 24, 2006, to restate our audited financial results as of December
31, 2005 and 2004 and for the three years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 and for other periods affected, including our unaudited
financial statements for each quarterly period in 2004, 2005 and 2006 as necessary (the �Restatement�).  The Restatement reflects the following
adjustments:

1.  We have recorded asset values for securities received from Advocat (and the increases therein) since the
completion of the restructuring of Advocat obligations pursuant to leases and mortgages for the facilities then
operated by Advocat in 2000.  These adjustments will increase net income by $5.9 million and $8.7 million for the
three and six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2005, respectively.  These adjustments will also increase total assets by $13.6 million and $5.4 million
as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.  Changes in the fair value of the securities not currently
recognized in net income will be reflected in other comprehensive income.

2.  As a result of our holdings of Advocat securities, we have recorded reserves related to a potential tax liability
arising from our ownership of such securities.  This tax liability along with related interest expense had not been
previously accrued for and this adjustment will decrease net income by $0.6 million and $1.1 million for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.2 million for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2005, respectively.  The amount accrued represents the estimated liability, which remains subject to final
resolution and therefore is subject to change.

3.  Subsequent to October 25, 2006, we made a correction to our accounting for certain leases because these
leases contain provisions (such as increases in rent based on the lesser of a fixed amount or two times the Consumer
Price Index) that require us to record rental income on a straight-line basis subject to an appropriate evaluation of
collectibility.  We had not previously recorded rental income on these leases on a straight-line basis.  As a result of
this adjustment, our net income will increase by $0.9 million and $1.9 million for the three and six months ended June
30, 2006, respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005,
respectively. In addition, net accounts receivable and retained earnings will increase by $11.1 million and $9.1 million
as of June 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively, to reflect the effects of this adjustment from inception of the
affected leases.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Operating Revenues

Our operating revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2006 totaled $32.4 million, an increase of $6.1 million, over the same period in
2005.  The $6.1 million increase was primarily a result of new investments made throughout 2005.  The increase in
operating revenues from new investments was partially offset by a reduction in mortgage interest income and
one-time contractual interest revenue associated with the payoff of a mortgage during the first quarter of 2005.
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Detailed changes in operating revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2006 are as follows:

•  Rental income was $30.0 million, an increase of $6.8 million over the same period in 2005.  The increase
was primarily due to new leases entered into throughout 2005 and from consolidation of a VIE.

•  Mortgage interest income totaled $1.2 million, a decrease of $0.1 million over the same period in 2005.  The
decrease was primarily the result of normal amortization and a $10 million loan payoff that occurred in the second
quarter of 2006.

•  Other investment income totaled $0.9 million, an increase of $0.1 million over the same period in 2005.  The
primary reason for the increase was due to dividends and accretion income associated with the Advocat securities.

•  Miscellaneous revenue was $0.3 million, a decrease of $0.8 million over the same period in 2005.  The
decrease was due to contractual revenue owed to us and received in the second quarter of 2005 resulting from a
mortgage note prepayment that occurred in the first quarter of 2005.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2006 totaled $9.9 million, an increase of approximately $0.9 million over the same
period in 2005.  The increase was primarily due to $1.5 million of increased depreciation expense partially offset by a
2005 leasehold expiration expense.

Detailed changes in our operating expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2006 versus the same period in 2005 are as follows:

•  Our depreciation and amortization expense was $7.5 million, compared to $6.0 million for the same period in
2005.  The increase is due to new investments placed throughout 2005 and the consolidation of a VIE in 2006.

•  Our general and administrative expense, when excluding restricted stock amortization expense, was $2.0
million, compared to $1.8 million for the same period in 2005. The increase was primarily due to normal inflationary
increases in goods and services.

•  In 2005, we recorded a $0.1 million provision for uncollectible notes receivable.

•  In 2005, we recorded a $0.8 million lease expiration accrual relating to disputed capital improvement
requirements associated with a lease that expired June 30, 2005.

Other Income (Expense)

For the three months ended June 30, 2006, our total other net expenses were $4.3 million as compared to $11.0 million for the same period in
2005.  The significant changes are as follows:

•  Our interest expense, excluding amortization of deferred costs and refinancing related interest expenses, for
the three months ended June 30, 2006 was $9.4 million, compared to $6.9 million for the same period 2005.  The
increase of $2.5 million was primarily due to higher debt on our balance sheet versus the same period in 2005 and
from consolidation of a VIE in 2006.

•  During the three months ended June 30, 2005, we recorded a $3.4 million provision for impairment on an
equity security.  In accordance with FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities, the $3.4 million provision for impairment was to write-down our 760,000 share investment in Sun
Healthcare Group, Inc.�s (�Sun�) common stock to its then current fair market value.
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•  For the three months ended June 30, 2006, we recorded a $5.5 million mark-to-market adjustment to reflect
the fair value of our derivative instrument (i.e., the conversion feature of a redeemable convertible preferred stock
security in Advocat, a publicly traded company; see Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements
and Note 8 � Investments in Debt and Equity Securities).
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Operating Revenues

Our operating revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2006 totaled $64.6 million, an increase of $10.0 million, over the same period in
2005.  The $10.0 million increase was primarily a result of new investments made throughout 2005.  The increase in
operating revenues from new investments was partially offset by a reduction in mortgage interest income and
one-time contractual interest revenue associated with the payoff of a mortgage during the first quarter of 2005.

Detailed changes in operating revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2006 are as follows:

•  Rental income was $59.9 million, an increase of $14.3 million over the same period in 2005.  The increase
was primarily due to new leases entered into throughout 2005 and the consolidation of a VIE in 2006.

•  Mortgage interest income totaled $2.3 million, a decrease of $0.9 million over the same period in 2005.  The
decrease was primarily the result of normal amortization, a $60 million loan payoff that occurred in the first quarter of
2005 and a $10 million loan payoff that occurred in the second quarter of 2006.

•  Other investment income totaled $1.9 million, an increase of $0.4 million over the same period in 2005.  The
primary reason for the increase was due to dividends and accretion income associated with the Advocat securities.

•  Miscellaneous revenue was $0.4 million, a decrease of $3.9 million over the same period in 2005.  The
decrease was due to contractual revenue owed to us and received in the second quarter of 2005 resulting from a
mortgage note prepayment that occurred in the first quarter of 2005.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2006 totaled $19.7 million, an increase of approximately $2.9 million over the same
period in 2005.  The increase was primarily due to $3.3 million of increased depreciation expense partially offset by a
2005 leasehold termination expense.

Detailed changes in our operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2006 versus the same period in 2005 are as follows:

•  Our depreciation and amortization expense was $15.1 million, compared to $11.7 million for the same period
in 2005.  The increase is due to new investments placed throughout 2005 and the consolidation of a VIE in 2006.

•  Our general and administrative expense, when excluding restricted stock amortization expense, was $4.1
million, compared to $3.7 million for the same period in 2005.  The increase was primarily due to normal inflationary
increases in goods and services.

•  In 2005, we recorded a $0.1 million provision for uncollectible notes receivable.

•  In 2005, we recorded a $0.8 million lease expiration accrual relating to disputed capital improvement
requirements associated with a lease that expired June 30, 2005.

Other Income (Expense)

For the six months ended June 30, 2006, our total other net expenses were $15.5 million as compared to $18.5 million for the same period in
2005.  The significant changes are as follows:
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the six months ended June 30, 2006 was $19.1 million, compared to $13.7 million
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for the same period 2005.  The increase of $5.3 million was primarily due to higher debt on our balance sheet versus the same period in 2005
and from consolidation of a VIE in 2006.

•  For the six months ended June 30, 2006, we recorded a $0.8 million non-cash charge associated with the
redemption of the remaining 20.7% of our $100 million aggregate principal amount of  6.95% unsecured notes due
2007 not otherwise tendered in 2005.

•  For the six months ended June 30, 2006, we recorded a one time, non-cash charge of approximately $2.7
million relating to the write-off of deferred financing costs associated with the termination of our prior credit facility.

•  During the six months ended June 30, 2005, we recorded a $3.4 million provision for impairment of an
equity security.  In accordance with FASB Statement No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities, the $3.4 million provision for impairment was to write-down our 760,000 share investment in Sun�s
common stock to its then current fair market value.

•  For the six months ended June 30, 2006, we recorded a $7.9 million mark-to-market adjustment to reflect the
fair value of our derivative instrument (i.e., the conversion feature of a redeemable convertible preferred stock security
in Advocat, a publicly traded company; see Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements and Note 8
� Investments in Debt and Equity Securities).

Taxes

So long as we qualify as a REIT and, among other things, we distribute 90% of our taxable income, we will not be subject to Federal income
taxes on our income, except as described below.  We are permitted to own up to 100% of a �taxable REIT subsidiary� (�TRS�).  Currently, we have
two TRSs that are taxable as corporations and that pay federal, state and local income tax on their net income at the applicable corporate rates.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we determined that certain terms of the Advocat Series B non-voting, redeemable convertible preferred stock
held by us could be interpreted as affecting our compliance with federal income tax rules applicable to REITs regarding related party tenant
income.  As such, Advocat, one of our lessees, may be deemed to be a �related party tenant� under applicable federal income tax rules.  In such
event, our rental income from Advocat would not be qualifying income under the gross income tests that are
applicable to REITs.  In order to maintain qualification as a REIT, we annually must satisfy certain tests regarding the
source of our gross income.  The applicable federal income tax rules provide a �savings clause� for REITs that fail to
satisfy the REIT gross income tests if such failure is due to reasonable cause.  A REIT that qualifies for the savings
clause will retain its REIT status but will pay a tax under section 857(b)(5) and related interest.  We currently plan to
submit to the IRS a request for a closing agreement to resolve the �related party tenant� issue.  While we believe there
are valid arguments that Advocat should not be deemed a �related party tenant,� the matter is not free from doubt, and
we believe it is in our best interest to request a closing agreement in order to resolve the matter, minimize potential
interest charges and obtain assurances regarding our continuing REIT status.  By submitting a request for a closing
agreement, we intend to establish that any failure to satisfy the gross income tests was due to reasonable cause (see
Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements).  In the event that it is determined that the �savings
clause� described above does not apply, we could be treated as having failed to qualify as a REIT for one or more
taxable years.  If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT for any taxable year, our income will be taxed at regular
corporate rates, and we could be disqualified as a REIT for the following four taxable years.

As a result of the potential related party tenant issue described above and further discussed in Note 2 � Restatement of Previously Issued Financial
Statements, we have recorded a $0.6 million and $1.1 million provision for income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2006,
respectively, and $0.6 million and $1.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005, respectively.  The amount accrued represents
the estimated liability and interest, which remains subject to final resolution and therefore is subject to change.  In addition, in October 2006, we
restructured our Advocat relationship and
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have been advised by tax counsel that we will not receive any non-qualifying related party tenant income from Advocat in future fiscal years. 
Accordingly, we do not expect to incur tax expense associated with related party tenant income in future periods commencing January 1, 2007. 
We will continue to accrue an income tax liability related to this matter during 2006.

Loss from Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations relate to properties we disposed of in 2006 or are currently held-for-sale and are accounted for as discontinued
operations under SFAS No. 144.  For the three and six months ended June 30, 2006, we sold two SNFs in California resulting in an
accounting loss of approximately $0.1 million.

At June 30, 2006, we had one asset held for sale with a net book value of approximately $0.2 million.

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, a $0.1 million provision for impairment charge was recorded to reduce the carrying value to its
sales price of one facility that was under contract to be sold that was subsequently sold during the second quarter of 2006.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, the $0.4 million realized net loss is reflected in our consolidated statements of operations as discontinued
operations.  See Note 9 � Discontinued Operations.

Funds From Operations

Our funds from operations available to common stockholders (�FFO�), for the three months ended June 30, 2006, was $22.7 million, compared to
$8.3 million, for the same period in 2005.

We calculate and report FFO in accordance with the definition and interpretive guidelines issued by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (�NAREIT�), and, consequently, FFO is defined as net income available to common stockholders, adjusted for the effects of
asset dispositions and certain non-cash items, primarily depreciation and amortization.  We believe that FFO is an important supplemental
measure of our operating performance.  Because the historical cost accounting convention used for real estate assets requires depreciation
(except on land), such accounting presentation implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time, while real estate
values instead have historically risen or fallen with market conditions.  The term FFO was designed by the real estate industry to address this
issue.  FFO herein is not necessarily comparable to FFO of other real estate investment trusts (�REITs�) that do not use the same definition or
implementation guidelines or interpret the standards differently from us.

We use FFO as one of several criteria to measure operating performance of our business.  We further believe that by excluding the effect of
depreciation, amortization and gains or losses from sales of real estate, all of which are based on historical costs and which may be of limited
relevance in evaluating current performance, FFO can facilitate comparisons of operating performance between periods and between other
REITs.  We offer this measure to assist the users of our financial statements in evaluating our financial performance under GAAP, and FFO
should not be considered a measure of liquidity, an alternative to net income or an indicator of any other performance measure determined in
accordance with GAAP.  Investors and potential investors in our securities should not rely on this measure as a substitute for any GAAP
measure, including net income.

In February 2004, NAREIT informed its member companies that it was adopting the position of the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�)
with respect to asset impairment charges and would no longer recommend that impairment write-downs be excluded from FFO.  In the tables
included in this disclosure, we have applied this interpretation and have not excluded asset impairment charges in calculating our FFO.  As a
result, our FFO may not be comparable to similar measures reported in

49

Edgar Filing: OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS INC - Form 10-Q/A

66



previous disclosures.  According to NAREIT, there is inconsistency among NAREIT member companies as to the adoption of this interpretation
of FFO.  Therefore, a comparison of our FFO results to another company�s FFO results may not be meaningful.

The following table presents our FFO results reflecting the impact of asset impairment charges (the SEC�s interpretation) for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2006 and 2005:

Three Months  Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2006
Restated

2005
Restated

2006
Restated

2005
Restated

(in thousands)

Net income available to
common $ 15,009 $ (2,430 ) $ 22,703 $ 3,661
Add back loss from real estate
dispositions 133 4,165 381 4,202
Sub-total 15,142 1,735 23,084 7,863
Elimination of non-cash items
included in net income:
Depreciation and amortization 7,542 6,540 15,069 12,793
Funds from operations
available to common
stockholders $ 22,684 $ 8,275 $ 38,153 $ 20,656

Portfolio Developments, New Investments and Recent Developments

Below is a brief description, by third-party operator, of our re-leasing, restructuring or new investment transactions that occurred during the six
months ended June 30, 2006.

Hickory Creek Healthcare Foundation, Inc.

On June 16, 2006, we received approximately $10 million in proceeds on a mortgage loan payoff.  We held mortgages on 15 facilities located in
Indiana, representing 619 beds.

Haven Eldercare, LLC

•  During the three months ending March 31, 2006, Haven Eldercare, LLC (�Haven�), an existing operator of
ours, entered into a $39 million first mortgage loan with General Electric Capital Corporation (�GE Loan�).  Haven used
the $39 million of proceeds to partially repay on a $62 million mortgage it has with us.  Simultaneously, we
subordinated the payment of our remaining $23 million on the mortgage note, due in October 2012, to that of the GE
Loan.  As a result of this transaction, the interest rate on our remaining mortgage note to Haven rose from 10% to
approximately 15%, with annual escalators.

•  In conjunction with the above transactions and the application of FIN 46R, we consolidated the financial
statements and related real estate of this Haven entity into our financial statements.  The consolidation resulted in the
following changes to our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2006: (1) an increase in total gross investments of
$39.0 million; (2) an increase in accumulated depreciation of $0.8 million; (3) an increase in other long-term
borrowings of $39.0 million; and (4) a reduction of $0.8 million in cumulative net earnings for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 due to the increased depreciation expense.  General Electric Capital Corporation and Haven�s other
creditors do not have recourse to our assets.  Our results of operations reflect the effects of the consolidation of this
entity, which is being accounted for similarly to our other purchase-leaseback transactions.
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Assets Sold

•  On June 30, 2006, we sold two SNFs in California resulting in an accounting loss of approximately $0.1
million.

•  On March 31, 2006, we sold a SNF in Illinois resulting in an accounting loss of approximately $0.2 million.

Held for Sale

•  We had one asset held for sale as of June 30, 2006 with a net book value of approximately $0.2 million.

•  During the three months ended March 31, 2006, a $0.1 million provision for impairment charge was
recorded to reduce the carrying value to its sales price of one facility that was under contract to be sold, which was
subsequently sold during the second quarter of 2006.

The partial expiration of certain Medicare rate increases has had an adverse impact on the revenues of the operators of nursing home facilities
and has negatively impacted some operators� ability to satisfy their monthly lease or debt payment to us.  In several instances, we hold security
deposits that can be applied in the event of lease and loan defaults, subject to applicable limitations under bankruptcy law with respect to
operators seeking protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At June 30, 2006, we had total assets of $1.0 billion, stockholders� equity of $455.5 million and debt of $526.5 million, which represents
approximately 53.6% of our total capitalization.

The following table shows the amounts due in connection with the contractual obligations described below as of June 30, 2006.

Payments due by period

Total
Less than
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years

More than
5 years

(In thousands)
Long-term debt (1) $ 526,800 $ 390 $ 850 $ 960 $ 524,600
Other long-term liabilities 616 231 385 � �
Total $ 527,416 $ 621 $ 1,235 $ 960 $ 524,600

(1)  The $526.8 million includes $310 million aggregate principal amount of 7% Senior Notes due 2014,
$175 million aggregate principal amount of 7% Senior Notes due 2016 and Haven�s $39 million first mortgage with
General Electric Capital Corporation that expires in 2012.  As of June 30, 2006, there are no outstanding borrowings
under the new $200 million revolving senior secured credit facility that matures in March 2010.

Financing Activities and Borrowing Arrangements

Bank Credit Agreements

At June 30, 2006, we had no outstanding borrowings under our $200 million revolving senior secured credit facility (the �New Credit Facility�);
however, $2.9 million was utilized for the issuance of letters of credit, leaving availability of $197.1 million.  The New Credit Facility, entered
into on March 31, 2006, is being provided by Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, UBS
Securities LLC, General Electric Capital Corporation, LaSalle Bank N.A., and Citicorp North America, Inc. and will be used for acquisitions
and general corporate purposes.
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The New Credit Facility replaced our previous $200 million senior secured credit facility (the �Prior Credit Facility�) that was terminated on
March 31, 2006.  We will realize a 125 basis point savings on LIBOR-based loans under the New Credit Facility, as compared to LIBOR-based
loans under our Prior Credit Facility.  The New Credit Facility matures on March 31, 2010, and includes an �accordion feature� that permits us to
expand our borrowing capacity to $300 million during our first two years.

For the three-month period ending March 31, 2006, we recorded a one-time, non-cash charge of approximately $2.7 million relating to the
write-off of deferred financing costs associated with the termination of our Prior Credit Facility.

Our long-term borrowings require us to meet certain property level financial covenants and corporate financial covenants, including prescribed
leverage, fixed charge coverage, minimum net worth, limitations on additional indebtedness and limitations on dividend payouts.  As of June 30,
2006, we were in compliance with all property level and corporate financial covenants.

On October 23, 2006, we entered into a Second Amendment, Waiver and Consent to Credit Agreement (the �Second Amendment�) pursuant to
which the lenders under the New Credit Facility waived any potential misrepresentations and events of default that could have been caused by
the Restatement.

$100 Million Aggregate Principal Amount of 6.95% Unsecured Notes Tender and Redemption

On December 16, 2005, we initiated a tender offer and consent solicitation for all of our outstanding $100 million aggregate principal amount
6.95% notes due 2007 (the �2007 Notes�).  On December 30, 2005, we accepted for purchase the 79.3% of the aggregate principal amount of the
2007 Notes outstanding that were tendered.  On December 30, 2005, our Board of Directors also authorized the redemption of all outstanding
2007 Notes that were not otherwise tendered.  On December 30, 2005, upon our irrevocable funding of the full redemption price for the 2007
Notes and certain other acts required by the Indenture governing the 2007 Notes, the Trustee of the 2007 Notes certified in writing to us (the
�Certificate of Satisfaction and Discharge�) that the Indenture was satisfied and discharged as of December 30, 2005, except for certain
administrative provisions.  In accordance with FASB Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishment of Liabilities, (�FAS 140�) we removed 79.3% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2007 Notes, which were tendered in our
tender offer and consent solicitation, and the corresponding portion of the funds held in trust by the Trustee to pay the tender price from our
balance sheet and recognized $2.8 million of additional interest expense associated with the tender offer.  On January 18, 2006, we completed
the redemption of the remaining 2007 Notes not otherwise tendered. Accordingly, we reduced other assets, representing the funds deposited with
the Trustee, and unsecured borrowings by $21 million. In connection with the redemption and in accordance with FAS 140, we recognized $0.8
million of additional interest expense in the first quarter of 2006.  As of January 18, 2006, none of the 2007 Notes remained outstanding.

Other Long-Term Borrowings

During the three months ended March 31, 2006, Haven used the $39 million of proceeds from the GE Loan to partially repay a portion of a $62
million mortgage it has with us.  Simultaneously, we subordinated the payment of its remaining $23 million on the mortgage note to that of the
GE Loan.  In conjunction with the above transactions and the application of FIN 46R, we consolidated the financial statements of this Haven
entity into our financial statements, which contained the long-term borrowings with General Electric Capital Corporation of $39.0 million.  The
loan has an interest rate of approximately seven percent and is due in 2012.  The lender of the $39.0 million does not have recourse to our assets.
 See Note 3 � Properties; Leased Property.
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Dividends

In order to qualify as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends (other than capital gain dividends) to our stockholders in an amount at least
equal to (A) the sum of (i) 90% of our �REIT taxable income� (computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction and our net capital gain),
and (ii) 90% of the net income (after tax), if any, from foreclosure property, minus (B) the sum of certain items of non-cash income. In addition,
if we dispose of any built-in gain asset during a recognition period, we will be required to distribute at least 90% of the built-in gain (after tax), if
any, recognized on the disposition of such asset. Such distributions must be paid in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following
taxable year if declared before we timely file our tax return for such year and paid on or before the first regular dividend payment after such
declaration. In addition, such distributions are required to be made pro rata, with no preference to any share of stock as compared with other
shares of the same class, and with no preference to one class of stock as compared with another class except to the extent that such class is
entitled to such a preference. To the extent that we do not distribute all of our net capital gain or do distribute at least 90%, but less than 100% of
our �REIT taxable income,� as adjusted, we will be subject to tax thereon at regular ordinary and capital gain corporate tax rates.  In addition, our
$200 million New Credit Facility has certain financial covenants that limit the distribution of dividends paid during a fiscal quarter to no more
than 95% of our aggregate cumulative funds from operations (�FFO�) as defined in the loan agreement governing the New Credit Facility (the
�Loan Agreement�), unless a greater distribution is required to maintain REIT status.  The Loan Agreement defines FFO as net income (or loss)
plus depreciation and amortization and shall be adjusted for charges related to: (i) restructuring our debt; (ii) redemption of preferred stock; (iii)
litigation charges up to $5.0 million; (iv) non-cash charges for accounts and notes receivable up to $5.0 million; (v) non-cash compensation
related expenses; and (vi) non-cash impairment charges.

Common Dividends

On July 17, 2006, the Board of Directors announced a common stock dividend of $0.24 per share to be paid August 15, 2006 to common
stockholders of record on July 31, 2006.

On April 18, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a common stock dividend of $0.24 per share, an increase of $0.01 per common share
compared to the prior quarter.  The common dividend was paid May 15, 2006 to common stockholders of record on April 28, 2006.

On January 17, 2006, the Board of Directors declared a common stock dividend of $0.23 per share, an increase of $0.01 per common share
compared to the prior quarter.  The common stock dividend was paid February 15, 2006 to common stockholders of record on January 31, 2006.

Series D Preferred Dividends

On July 17, 2006, the Board of Directors declared the regular quarterly dividends for the 8.375% Series D Cumulative Redeemable Preferred
Stock (�Series D Preferred Stock�) to stockholders of record onJuly 31, 2006.  The stockholders of record of the Series D Preferred Stock on July
31, 2006 will be paid dividends in the amount of $0.52344 per preferred share on August 15, 2006.  The liquidation preference for our Series D
Preferred Stock is $25.00 per share. Regular quarterly preferred dividends for the Series D Preferred Stock represent dividends for the period
May 1, 2006 through July 31, 2006.

Liquidity

We believe our liquidity and various sources of available capital, including cash from operations, our existing availability under our New Credit
Facility and expected proceeds from mortgage payoffs are more than adequate to finance operations, meet recurring debt service requirements
and fund future investments through the next twelve months.
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We regularly review our liquidity needs, the adequacy of cash flow from operations, and other expected liquidity sources to meet these needs. 
We believe our principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund:

•              normal recurring expenses;

•              debt service payments;

•              preferred stock dividends;

•              common stock dividends; and

•              growth through acquisitions of additional properties.

The primary source of liquidity is our cash flows from operations.  Operating cash flows have historically been determined by: (i) the number of
facilities we lease or have mortgages on; (ii) rental and mortgage rates; (iii) our debt service obligations; and (iv) general and administrative
expenses.  The timing, source and amount of cash flows provided by financing activities and used in investing activities are sensitive to the
capital markets environment, especially to changes in interest rates.  Changes in the capital markets environment may impact the availability of
cost-effective capital and affect our plans for acquisition and disposition activity.

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $14.1 million as of June 30, 2006, an increase of $10.1 million as compared to the balance at December 31,
2005.  The following is a discussion of changes in cash and cash equivalents due to operating, investing and financing activities, which are
presented in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Operating Activities � Net cash flow from operating activities generated $42.7 million for the six months ended June 30,
2006, as compared to $34.4 million for the same period in 2005.  The $8.3 million increase is due primarily to: (i)
incremental revenue associated with acquisitions completed throughout 2005 and (ii) normal working capital
fluctuations during the period.

Investing Activities � Net cash flow from investing activities was an inflow of $4.3 million for the six months ended June
30, 2006, as compared to an outflow of $53.9 million for the same period in 2005.  The $58.2 million change in
investing cash outflow was primarily due to: (i) an outflow of $120.7 million for acquisitions completed during the six
months of 2005 as compared to the same period in 2006, (ii) a $60.0 million mortgage payoff in 2005 as compared to
a $10.0 million mortgage payoff in 2006 and (iii) $0.7 million collected from the sale of real estate for the six months
ended June 30, 2006 as compared to $12.3 million in 2005.

Financing Activities � Net cash flow from financing activities was an outflow of $36.9 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2006 as compared to an inflow of $7.9 million for the same period in 2005.  The increase in financing cash
outflow of $44.8 million was primarily a result of net repayments of $58.0 million on our New Credit Facility in 2006
versus net borrowings of $86.5 million on our Prior Credit Facility in 2005. The financial cash outflow was partially
offset by $39.0 million of proceeds received in a Haven transaction, $50.0 million redemption of the outstanding
shares of Series B preferred stock in 2005 and $16.6 million of incremental optional cash purchases of our common
stock through our dividend reinvestment and common stock purchase plan for the six months ended June 30, 2006 as
compared to the same time period in 2005.

Item 3 � Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to various market risks, including the potential loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates.  We have not been impacted
by fluctuations in interest rates as a result of our relatively modest New Credit Facility borrowings.  During the three months ended June 30,
2006, we did not have borrowings under our New Credit Facility and, consequently, did not have any material exposure to interest rate market
risks.  However, as any future borrowings under our New Credit Facility will be at a variable
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rate of interest, we could potentially be materially adversely impacted should we require significant borrowings in the future, particularly during
a period of rising interest rates.

We do not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes, but we seek to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in interest rates by matching the term of new investments with new long-term fixed rate borrowing to the extent possible.

The fair value of our embedded derivative (i.e., the conversion feature of a preferred stock investment) is subject to change due to fluctuations
primarily resulting from the market value of Advocat�s common stock.  A ten percent increase in the value of Advocat�s common stock as of June
30, 2006 to $18.82 per common share would have resulted in a $1.2 million or 13.4% increase in the value of this derivative as of June 30,
2006.  A ten percent decrease in the value of Advocat�s common stock as of June 30, 2006 to $15.40 per common share would have resulted in a
$1.2 or 13.4% decrease in the value of this derivative as of June 30, 2006.

For additional information, refer to Item 7A as presented in our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Item 4 � Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�))
are controls and other procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information that we are required to disclose in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
SEC�s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with the preparation of our previously filed Form 10-Q as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2006, we evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2006 and, based on that evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that these controls and procedures were effective as of
June 30, 2006.

In connection with the preparation of this Form 10-Q/A, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of June 30, 2006. In making this evaluation, our management considered the matters relating to the restatement of our
financial statements and the material weakness discussed below. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level as of June 30, 2006.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As noted under Item 9A in Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in our Form 10-K/A for the year ended December
31, 2005, management determined that a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting existed as of
December 31, 2005. Management determined that as of December 31, 2005, we lacked sufficient internal control
processes, procedures and personnel resources necessary to address accounting for certain complex and/or non-routine
transactions.  This material weakness resulted in errors in accounting for financial instruments, income taxes and
straight-line rental revenue and could result in a material misstatement to the interim consolidated financial statements
that would not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.  In the course of management�s evaluation of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of June 30, 2006, no changes in our internal control over financial reporting were identified
as having occurred during the quarter ended June 30, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

In light of the material weakness described above, we performed additional analyses and other procedures to ensure that our consolidated
financial statements included in this Form 10-Q/A were prepared in accordance with GAAP. These measures included, among other things,
expansion of our document review procedures and dedication of significant internal resources to scrutinize account analyses.  As a result, we
concluded that the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-Q/A present fairly, in all material respects, our financial position,
results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented in conformity with GAAP.
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PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1 � Legal Proceedings

See Note 10 � Litigation to the Consolidated Financial Statements in PART I, Item 1 hereto, which is hereby incorporated by reference in
response to this item.

Item 1A- Risk Factors

We amended our Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2005 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 14, 2006, which sets forth our risk factors in Item 1A therein. We have not experienced any material changes from the risk factors
previously described therein.

Item 4 � Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Our annual meeting of stockholders (the �Annual Meeting�) was held on May 25, 2006.  Of the total number of common shares outstanding on
April 21, 2006, a total of 57,992,789 were represented in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting.  Results of votes with respect to proposals
submitted at the Annual Meeting are set forth below.

(a)           To elect two nominees to serve as directors and to hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors
have been elected and qualified.  Our stockholders voted to elect both nominees to serve as directors.  Votes recorded, by nominee, were as
follows:

Nominee For Against/Withheld
Bernard J. Korman 51,060,573 649,442
Thomas F. Franke 51,056,153 653,862

(b)           To consider and vote upon a proposal to ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent auditor for the fiscal year 2006:

For Against Abstain
51,555,820 62,564 91,630

Item 5 � Other Information

We entered into a contract of sale (the �Litchfield Contract�), dated as of May 5, 2006, between Laramie Associates, LLC,
Casper Associates, LLC, North 12th Street Associates, LLC, North Union Boulevard Associates, LLC, Jones Avenue
Associates, LLC, Litchfield Investment Company, L.L.C., Ustick Road Associates, LLC, West 24th Street Associates,
LLC, North Third Street Associates, LLC, Midwestern Parkway Associates, LLC, North Francis Street Associates,
LLC, West Nash Street Associates, LLC (as sellers) and OHI Asset (LA), LLC, NRS Ventures, L.L.C. and OHI Asset
(CO), LLC (as buyers).

The Litchfield Contract provides for the purchase of thirty skilled nursing facilities and one independent living center from Litchfield
Companies for approximately $171 million (the �Litchfield Transaction�).  The facilities total 3,847 beds and are located in the states of Colorado
(5), Florida (7),
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Idaho (1), Louisiana (13), and Texas (5).  The facilities were subject to master leases with three national healthcare providers, which are our
existing tenants.  The tenants are Home Quality Management, Inc., Nexion Health, Inc., and Peak Medical Corporation, which was acquired by
Sun Healthcare Group, Inc. (�Sun�) in December of 2005.  The Litchfield Contract provides for customary representations, warranties and
indemnification provisions.  The Litchfield Contract is attached to this Form 10-Q as Exhibit 10.1 and is incorporated herein by reference.  The
total incremental annualized rent from the 31 facility transaction is approximately $17.1 million.

We closed the Litchfield Transaction on August 1, 2006.  We used a combination of cash on hand and $150 million of borrowings under our
$200 million revolving senior secured credit facility (the �New Credit Facility�), drawn on August 1, 2006, to finance the Litchfield transaction.

The New Credit Facility, entered into on March 31, 2006, is being provided by Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, UBS Securities LLC, General Electric Capital Corporation, LaSalle Bank N.A., and Citicorp North America, Inc. and
will be used for acquisitions and general corporate purposes.  The New Credit Facility matures on March 31, 2010, and includes an �accordion
feature� that permits us to expand our borrowing capacity to $300 million during our first two years.

Item 6 � Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description
10.1 Contract of sale, dated as of May 5, 2006, between Laramie Associates, LLC, Casper Associates, LLC, North 12th Street

Associates, LLC, North Union Boulevard Associates, LLC, Jones Avenue Associates, LLC, Litchfield
Investment Company, L.L.C., Ustick Road Associates, LLC, West 24th Street Associates, LLC, North
Third Street Associates, LLC, Midwestern Parkway Associates, LLC, North Francis Street Associates,
LLC, West Nash Street Associates, LLC (as sellers) and OHI Asset (LA), LLC, NRS Ventures, L.L.C.
and OHI Asset (CO), LLC (as buyers) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2006).

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Officer.

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer.

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

OMEGA HEALTHCARE INVESTORS, INC.
Registrant

Date: December 14, 2006 By: /S/ C. TAYLOR
PICKETT
C. Taylor Pickett
Chief Executive Officer

Date: December 14, 2006 By: /S/ ROBERT O. STEPHENSON
Robert O. Stephenson
Chief Financial Officer
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